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Objective

To provide capital growth from investment in Russian secunites

Investment Policies

- To maintain a diverstfied portfolio of investments in quoted Russian secunities and
Russian pre-1PQ stocks (up to 10% of the gross assets of the Company) or other
companes which derive the majority of thewr revenue or gains from operating in
Russia

- To use gearing when appropriate to increase potential returns to shareholders

- To invest no more than 15% of gross assets in other UK listed investment compantes
(including investment trusts)

Benchmark

The MSCI Russian 10/40 Equity indices Index in sterling terms

Capital Structure

At 31st October 2012, the Company’s share capital comprised 53,827112 ordinary
shares of 1p each

Continuation Vate

A resolution that the Company continue as an investment trust will be put to
Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in 2017 and every five years thereafter
Management Company

The Company employs JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited (JPMAM’ or ‘the
Manager’) to manage its assets




Financial Results

Total returns (includes dividends reinvested)

-6.2%

Return to shareholders!
{2011: -16.7%)

-1.6% -5.8%

Return on net assets’ Benchmark’
(2011: -17.0%) (2011: -2.9%)
Long Term Performance
for periods ended 31st Qctober 2012
Returnto Returnon Benchmark
shareholders’ net assets’ return’
3 Year Performance 19 7% 19 5% 16 7%
5Year Performance -25 2% -23 0% -4 7%
Performance since listing in
December 2002 426 5% 429 7% 447 7%

A glossary of terms and defiutions 1s prowvided on page 52

Source Morningstar
#ource J P Morgan

¥spurce MSCI/CSFB The Benchmark is the MSCI Russian 10/40 Equaty Indices Endex in sterling terms
Prior to 1st November 2006, the benchmark was the CSFB Russian ROS Index in sterling terms
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Chairman’s Statement

2

During the year under review Russian equities fared somewhat better when compared
with 2011 Nonetheless the market remained volatile and ended the year lower than at
the start, a disappointing outcome in the context of positive performances from other
major emerging markets Although your Company's net asset value (NAV'} also feltin
this period, | am pleased to announce that performance exceeded that of its
benchmark by a strong margin In the financial year to 315t October 2012, the
Company's NAV total return was -1 6%, representing a 4 2% outperformance against
the Company’s benchmark, which fell by 5 8% The return to shareholders was -6 2%,
reflecting a widering of the discount at which the Company’s shares trade relative to
net asset value The discount to NAY was 10 3% at year end compared with 59% the
previous year, in hne with a widening of discounts in the emerging markets investment
trust sector in general Stock prices fell across key sectors with the highest benchmark
weightings including energy, utilities and matenals incontrast the consumer, telecoms
and financials sectors performed well, but not enough to counter the poor
performance by the rest of the market Some high quality companes did perform well,
although stocks with weak balance sheets continued to struggle

The Board's risk control investment guidelines, which were implemented to help to
eliminate excessive volatiity of the Company’s returns versus its benchmark, have
now been in place for a year Shareholders will recall that these guidelines hmited the
deviation from the benchmark for sector positions and also introduced a maximum
overweight position for stocks against therr benchmark weighting The guidelines
represent a sensible risk mitigation approach and continue to allow the investment
management team to operate with a high degree of conviction The major change In
terms of portfolio construction has been the reduction of the Company's underweight
position In the energy sector which 1s now the lowest it has been for seven years

This significant shift reflects the investment managers’ outlock for production
growth increased dividends and attractive current valuations in this sector

Discount Control

During the year the Company repurchased 1 297.200 shares for cancellation at an
average discount to net asset value of 109% The Board's objective remains to use
the share repurchase authority to assist In managing any imbalance between supply
and demand for the Company's shares, thereby reducing the volatiity of the discount
The Board operates a policy under which the Company intends, subject to market
conditions, to buy shares at discounts above 8% to achieve this The market
capitalisation and hiquidity of the shares are of paramount importance to our
Shareholders and the Board beheves that active management of the discount via
share buybacks is the best mechanism to achieve this

The Board will only repurchase shares at a discount to their prevailing net asset value,
and i1ssue shares when they trade at a premium to their net asset value, so as not to
prejudice existing shareholders The Board will seek authority to renew the Company’s
share 1ssuance and buyback powers at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Board of Directors

In compliance with corporate governance best practice, all Directors will be standing
for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting Further to the Company's
annual evaluation of the Directors, the Chairman, the Board and its Committees, the
Board recommends to Shareholders that all Directors be re-elected
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with two members recently appointed to the Board it was decided that the Directors
should visit Moscow to increase their knowledge of the Russian market tn December
2012 the Board spent three days in Moscow and met 11 companies as well as four
stock analysts and market commentators This provided the Board with an msight
into the very different opportunities and challenges faced by Russian comparnies, and
how our investrnent managers evaluate the prospects for these companies

Revenue and Earmings

Income after expenses was posiiive for the year to 315t October 2012 An increase In
the payment of dvidends by Russian companies 1s a major positive development and
hopefully signals a trend of improving corporate governance across the Russian
market Greater attention to shareholder returns andincreased dividend distributions
by quoted comparies would be good news for the Russian market and investors In
addition the lower management fee paid to JPMAM this year made a sigmficant
contribution to a reduction 1n expenses, indeed the Company’s newly defined
‘ongoing charges’ have fallento | 51%, from 1 82% in 2011 Please refer to the
glossary of terms and defimtions on page 52 for more details on this calculation

Despite the Company generating positive current year revenues, It still has a revenue
reserve deficit and therefore Directors are not proposing the payment of a dividend this
year Although the Company’s investment policy is aimed at maximising capital growth
and does not focus on income generation, your Board believes that investars would
welcome an income stream from their shares The payment of dividends to investors will
in turn depend on an increased number of Russian companies making sustained
dividend distributions to their shareholtders The Board expects to report further to
shareholders in the Company's half-year results on this matter

Annual General Meeting and General Meeting

The Company's tenth Annual General Meeting will be held on Monday, 4th March
2013 at 12 Q0 noon, at Holborn Bars, 138-142 Holborn, London ECIN 2NQ In addition
to the formal part of the meeting, there will be a presentation from the Investment
Managers who will be avatlable to answer questions on the portfolio and
performance There will also be an opportunity to meet the Board, the Investment
Managers and representatives of JIPMAM | look forward to seeing as many of you as
possible at this meeting Shareholders are asked to submit in wrniting any detailed or
techmical questions that they wish to raise at the AGM in advance to the Company
Secretary at Finsbury Dials, 20 Finsbury Street, London EC2Y 2AQ Alternatively you
can lodge questions on the Company’s website at www jpmrussian co uk

Outlook

Our investment managers believe that despite the risk that much-needed ecanomic
reforms will be slow to materialise, the Russian market continues to provide a good
nsk/reward proposiion for long-term investors This applies in particular within the
area of investing in medium sized companies which our investment managers
specialise in The flexibility which the Investment Managers have ininvesting in
smaller, high-growth opportunittes remains one of the key advantages that your
Company has over competing open-ended investment vehicles As with any
emerging market, Russia s not immune from market inefficiencres which our active
Investment managers believe they can use to the Company’s advantage

Lysander Tennant
Chairman 30th January 2013
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Investment Managers’ Report

Oleg! Biryulyov

Vitaly N Kazakov

4

The Russian stockmarket began 2012 with an enthusiastic rally, which lasted until
mud-March, when it lost ground on the back of global uncertainty over Greece and
concerns about the slowdown in China The political background in Russia also
contributed to a deterioration in market sentiment Although the outcome of the
presidential electton was as predicted with an overwhelming majonty voting for

Mr Putin, there was nevertheless the usual associated drama From June the market
moved upin a very choppy manner but at least in a positive direction The market
then weakened i October on the back of concerns about rates of sustainable
worldwide economic growth Overall, during the financial year to 31st October 2012,
our benchmark index, the MSCI Russian 10/40 Equittes Indices Index fell by 5 8% in
sterling terms Your Company's NAV fell by a more modest 1 6%, producing an
outperfarmance of 4 2% over the benchmark index

The Russian economy continued to grow at the relatively modest rate of 3% per
annum, which 15 below its potential, although this represents a strong performance
in companison with many other major markets worldwide Inflation dechined and
remained in the range of 6% to 6 5% The ruble appreciated by 4 5% versus the

us dollar in nominal terms despite relatively higher inflation, reflecting the strength
of the current account in the ight of continued high energy prices

Performance Attribution

The Company's performance benefited from its minimal exposure to the utilities
sector Utihties are highly regulated businesses In Russia within a generally poorly
regulated economic environment The process for setting tariffs 1s still not based on
economic parameters and the cross-subsidisation of consumer tanffs by business
charges s a highly politicised issue In addition the State would hke to see a
substantial level of capital investment across infrastructure progects, which makes the
utility sector in Russia different to other markets through the absence of free cash
flow generation and large/stable dividends The portfolio’s underweight in Rushydro
was one of key positive contributors to relative performance

Another underweight position to highlight was VTB Bank of Russia This Bank has a
significant exposure to investment banking This area s highly cyclical and dependent
on the overall equity market In years of weak equity market performance such as
2012, such exposure represents a costly labihty rather than an asset, as it has
minimum revenue from a relatively high fixed cost base This distortion of the
business model deterred us from taking a position In VI8 and the Company’s
performance relative to its benchmark was rewarded accordingly since VTB's stock
price underperformed the market

Our position in Kahina continued to benefit the Company in the reporting year
Elsewhere other industnal names such as Sollers and Eurasia Drilling finally
appreciated as the market realised that their operations were intact when
valuations fooked too low In addition O’Key, a new position within the retail sector,
performed strongly
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Performance attribution for the
year ended 31st October 2012

% %
Contributions to total returns
Benchmark -58
Stock selection +55
Gearing/net cash +03
Investment manager
contnbution 58
Partfolic total return 00
Management fee/
other expenses -18
Portfolio total return net
of fees and expenses -18
Share buybacks +02
Total of other effects -16
Return on net assets -16
Effect of movementin
discount gver the year -4 6
Return to Ordinary shargholders -62

Source Fagiset IPMAM and Morungstar

Allfigures are on a tatal return basis.

Performance attribution analyses how

the Company achieved its recorded

performance relative to its benchmark

index

A glossary of terms and definstions 15

provided on page 52

In contrast, holdings In Bank Saint Petersburgand Alllance Oil were hit by operational
disappointments We still see fundamental value in both companies and believe that
the current minor delays and setbacks operationally will not substanually reduce the
long term fair value of these businesses However, it may take some time for the
potential upside to be delivered in the reporting period these positions were majoer
detractors in the relative performance of the Company

One further disappointment for us was an underweight allocation te Transneft, the
state-owned oil transpertation company which inour view 1s an unpredictable
business However this year, the market suddenly deaided to give it credit for a
potential change in corporate governance and the potential conversion of this stock
to a high yielding asset We disagreed with this view and had to eat humble pie on the
back of it However we believe that this company 1s not managed in the interests of
minonity shareholders and 1s very unhkely to generate free cash flow any ime soon,
so this underweight position will be mantained

Investment Philosophy

There are no changes to our investment philosophy We ask ourselves two
fundamental questrons abaut any investment opportunity In Russia

1 Do we like the business? This includes our views on the following comgponents to
this question

= The long-term sustainability of the business The quality of management, the
company's product and its position in the competitive landscape and
regulatory matters affecting the company's prospects,

« Duration The guality of corporate governance, share capital structure and key
shareholders attitude/actions towards minorities,

» Economics Industry outlook, taxation and forecast returns on investment

If the combined answer for the first question 15 ‘Yes', then we move to next
question If ‘No’ then we avaid such investment opportunities as quite simply,
they do not meet our nsk/reward cntena

2 Do we like the business at its current price?

We use our internal research to derive a far valuation of individual stocks, and
based on the expected returns level between the current market price and fair
value we will make an investment decision to buy or sell an individual stock
Valuation techmigues may vary for different sectors, but the output of our
investment analysis 1s standardised We believe that there are four major sources
of potential return from any investment on the market earnings growth.
dmdends, tnvestment multiple change and currency impact The first two are
earnad by the company and represent the pnme focus for our financial
madelling The last two sources are provided by the market and we can use them
to our benefit However, we also need to be aware of the potential nisks related to
thern, 1 e the investment multiple for a particular market or sector may change
due to risk appetite, and currency may fluctuate based on inflation differentials
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Investment Managers’ Report

continued

6

To sum up If we like a business and its current price you will see the company in our
portfolio, although over time 1ts absolute and relative position will change in line with
stock price changes and our view of its return prospects

Market Developments

We would hike to lughlight two sigmificant developments which may impact our
returns in the foreseeable future 2012 was the first year to witness a dividend yield of
3+% for the Russian market, putting it on a par with other global emerging markets
for the first time 1n history This provides an important source of returns for investors
and represents a major first step in the improvement of corporate governance
standards The reason for the increase mainly stems from pressure exerted by the
state, which as a large shareholder in some major stocks has finalty insisted on a
specific level of payout on its investments This has made significant difference If this
policy 1s sustained we should see a re-rating of investment multiptes for the market,
as higher company valuations will be supported with a reasonable level of yield
Dividends are a sign of maturity in certain sectors, such as mobile telephony
companies, and it 1s pleasing to see that management in such sectors 1s acting
prudently by releasing part of thew capital back to shareholders via dividends

Another development I1s an expansion of the valuation gap between large cap at the
higher end of the valuation spectrum and small cap companies at the lower end The
same differential applies to companies included in the index which enjoy a tugher
valuation than non-index names This s not umique to 202, but more a continuation
of the previous year's changes The driver for this 15 clearly that fund flows to the
market are increasingly via exchange traded funds (ETFs), most of which track a
market iIndex We believe that this trend 1s not sustasnable and at some stage the
closure of this gap will create substantial outperformance for this Company In the
meantime this development will continue to distort the market picture

Politics

The result of the presidential elections came as no surprise, as there was httle doubt
that viadimir Putin would return to office However, the level of protest showed by
activists did come as a surprise for both the pelitical establishment and the majonity
of the population The new Russian middle class 1s demanding a bigger role in state
management and better control over how public money 1s spent by bureaucrats The
protest movement is not well organised and certainly lacks clear leadership, but it1s
beginning to influence the authorities given that they now have to be alert to public
dissatisfaction Nonetheless we do not expect any speedy or radical reforms to take
place immediately For now external pressures on government from a fall in
commodity prices 1s Likely tc be more powerful than local protests The government’s
major task for this year will be implementation of a budget code and oil price function
for the calculation of budget revenue It has been based on the average price for an
extended penod, so this should normalise volatility and prevent any enthusiasm for
extravagant spending
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We do not expect major changes in the current uncertain global economic
environment and we believe that the Russian story may be more exposed to
domestic growth and reform investments in infrastructure and a state push on
savings and investments may accelerate growth substantially as we have witnessed
in other countries, 5o there is considerable potential upside for economic growth,
subject to delivery by the authonities Unfortunately however, market expectations
for such delivery are extremely low

Conclusion

We believe that Russia will continue to surpnise us with a variety of reforms at state
and corporate levels We know that current valuations do not reflect the potential of
bustnesses in a ‘normal’ environment, but of course whether Russia becomes a
normal’ market I1s a key question for all investors Timing the Russian market never
was and never will be easy, 5o as Investors we have to adapt to its internal level of
volatility and adopt a long-term appreach to help smooth the extremes of the market
Seeking out less prominent investment opportunities and non-consensual names 1s
the prime strategy for a closed-ended structure such as your Company The Company
may not outperform the benchmark index for every reporting period, but through a
disciphined investment approach it should deliver compelling positive deviation over
the longer term Currently we believe that the risk/reward profile of the market Is
advantageous for investors

Oleg I. Biryulyov
vitaly N Kazakov

investment Managers 30th January 2013
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Summary of Results

2012 2011
Total returns for the year ended 31st October
Return to shareholders -6.2% -16 7%
Return on net assets -1.6% -17 0%
Benchmark' -5.8% -2 9%

% change

Net asset value, share price and discount at 31st October
Sharehelders’ funds (£'000} 298,835 311,107 -39
Net asset value per share 555.2p 564 4p -16
Share price 498.0p 5310p -62
Exchange rate (US$ £l) 1.61 161 00
Exchange rate (Ruble £1) 50.44 4794 +52
Share price discount to net asset value per share 10.3% 59%
Shares in 1ssue 53,827,112 55,124,312
Revenue for the year ended 31st October
Gross revenue return (£'000) 8,589 7,550 +13 8
Net revenue return/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation (£'000) 2,754 (350)
Revenue return/(loss) per share 5.03p 0 6e3)p
Dividend per share - -
Geanng/(net cash) at 31st October (0.1)% {2 1%
Ongoing Charges® 1.51% 182%

A glossary of terms and definitions 1s provided on page 52

Isource M5CI The benchmark 1s the MSCI Russian 10/40 Equity Indices Index in sterling terms

2Gearing represents the excess amount above shareholders funds of total assets less cash/cash equivalents, expressed as a percentage of the shareholders' funds If the amount so
calculated s negative ihis 15 shown as a ‘net cash’ position

Jongoing Charges represents the management fee and all other operating expenses excluding interest, expressed as a percentage of the average of the dady net assets during
the year The Ongoing Charges are calculated in accordance with guidance issued by the Association of Investment Compantes (the AIC') in May 2012 and replaces the Total
Expense Ratio published in previous years The comparative figure represents the expenses calculated as above, expressed as a percentage of the average month-end net asset
values during the year, in line with TER Methodology

8 [ JPMorgan Russian Securities plc, Annual Report & Accounts 2012




Performance

Performance since launch
Figures have been rebased to 100 at 20th Cecember 2002 (first day of trading)

Source Marmingstar/MSCI/CSFB

wmm  JPMorgan Russian Securities - share price

mmm  JPMorgan Russian Secuniies - net asset value pershare
smwm Benchmark

Performance Relative to Benchmark
Figures have been rebased to 100 at 20th December 2002 (first day of trading)

Source Marmingstar/MSCI/CSFB

= JPMorgan Russian Secunities - share pnece

mmm  JPMorgan Russian Secunues - net asset value per share

unm The benchmark s represented by the grey doited honzonital line

JPMorgan Russian Securities plc. Annual Report & Accounts 2012




Financial Record

Year ended 31st October 2002' 2003* 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 | 2012

Total net assets (€'m) 606 897 1160 1643 2650 4035 1427 2600 3761 3111 |2988

Net asset value per share (p) 1009 1569 2065 2925 4731 7214 2551 4649 6803 5644 | 555.2

Share price (p) 915 1380 1835 2690 4368 6655 2570 4160 6375 5310 |498.0

(Discount)/prermium {%6) 93) (@O @My @8O @7 @ 07 (05 B3 69| 10.3)
Gearing/(net cash)’ (%) 977 108 63 36 28 51 (7 0) 05 (30) 210 (@1
Ongoing Charges* (%) N/A 180 186 169 189 178 253 185 171 182 151

Year ended 31st October

Gross revenue (£'000) N/A 2,493 2119 2841 4388 7469 9632 950 6,034 7.550 [8,589

Revenue/(loss) per share (p) N/A 097 (D18 (155 (134) (132 09 (411) (069 (063)| 503

Dividends per share (p) N/A 090 - - - - - - - - -

Returns rebased to 100 at 31st October 2002

Return to shareholders® 1000 1451 1941 2845 4620 7039 2718 4399 6740 5613 | 526.5

Return on net assets® 1000 1484 1963 2780 4511 6880 2433 4433 6492 5385 |529.7
Benchmark return® 1000 1366 1751 2408 3893 5746 2761 4693 5984 5811 | 547.7

A glossary of terms and definitions 1s provided on page 52

First day of trading on 20th December 2002
2pertp from first day of trading on 20th December 2002 to 3151 October 2003

3Gearing represents the excess amount above shareholders’ funds of total assets less cash/cash equivalents, expressed as a percentage of the shareholders’ funds. if the amount so
talculated 15 negative this 1s shown as a ‘net cash’ position

“Ongoing Charges represents the management fee and all ather operating expenses excluding Interest, expressed as a percentage of the average of the dasly net assets during
the year The Ongoing Charges are calculated in accordance with guidance 1ssued by the Assooation of Investment Comparies (the AIC ) in May 2012 and replaces the Total
Expense Ratio published on previous years The comparative figure represents the expenses calculated as above, expressed as a percentage of the average month-end net asset
values during the year, in hne with TER Methodology

SSource Mormingstar

scource MSCI/CSFB The benchmark is the MSCI Russian 10/40 Equity Indices tndex in sterling terms  Prior to 15t November 2006, the benchmark was the CSFB Russian RD5 Index
n sterling terms
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Ten Largest Equity Investments

at 31st October
2012 2011
Valuation Valuation

Company Sector £000 %' £'000 97
Lukoil ADR Energy 34,725 11.6 10,783 35
Sberbank Rossi? Financials 30,224 101 40,760 131
Mobile Telesystems* Telecommunications Services 17,778 6.0 17,731 57
Dixy Consumer Staples 12,788 4.3 14,347 44
Gazprom ADR® Energy 11,924 4.0 - -
Magmt Consumer Staples 11,296 38 33,724 108
MMC Norilsk Nickel ADR® Materials 1,108 37 10,013 32
Mostotrest Industrials 10,947 3.7 10,412 34
Tatneft ADR Energy 10,900 3.6 18,461 59
Novatek GDR® Energy 9,840 33 - -
Total’ 161,530 54.1

'Based on total assets less current habilities of £298 8m
2Based on total assets less current labilities of £311 Im
3Includes ADR valued at £21,194,000

4Includes ADR valued at £15,008,000

SNot held in the portfolo at 315t October 2012

eNot encluded in the ten largest equity tnvestments at 31st October 2011

TAt 315t October 2011, the value of ten largest equity investments amounted to £192 3m representing 61 8% of total asse1s less current babihties

JPMorgan Russian Securities ple. Annual Report & Accounts 2012
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Sector Analysis

31st October 2012 31st October 2011

Active Active
Portfolio  Benchmark Position Portfollo  Benchmark Positign
%’ % % %' % %
Energy 32.0 41,2 {9.2) 124 398 (27 4)
Consumer Staples 16.6 47 19 314 51 263
Materials 14.5 151 (06) 115 217 {10 2}
Financials 131 15.0 (19 174 14 4 30
Telecommunrcations Services 106 12.9 (2.3) 91 88 03
Consumer Discretionary 5.6 - 5.6 66 - 66
Industrals 37 - 37 33 - 33
Health Care 2.3 - 23 32 - 32
Utilties 1.2 1ni1 (9.9) 26 102 (7 6)
Informatton Technology - - - 03 - 03
Liguidity Fund 0.7 - 0.7 25 - 25
Net current habilities {0.3) - (03) (03) - (03

Total 100.0 160.0 1000 100 0

1Based on total assats less current labilitres of £298 8m (2011 £311 1m)
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List of Investments

at 31st October 2012
Valuation Valuation
Company £'000 Company £'000
Energy Telecommunications Services
Lukail ADR 34,725 Mobile Telesystems® 17,778
Gazprom ADR 11924 Sistemad’ 7,907
Tatneft ADR' 10,900  Rostelekom? 5,929
Novatek GDR 9,840
’ Total Telecommunications Services 31,614
Eurasta Drilling GOR 7,931
g\lhanie ?Itl . ;8‘;‘; Consumer Discretionary
Glllrgul 29 te gia tments GDR 2':0 solfers 7,380
TNOK egpzor s Investments 2, ; CTC Media 5,490
) 412 world Trade Centre Moscow 3,862
Total Energy 95,754 Total Consumer Discretionary 16,732
gonsumer Staples 1 Industrials
Iy 788 ostotrest 10,947
Magmt 11,296
Okey 7,339 Total Industrials 10,947
Cherkizovo GDR 7.191
X5 Retail GDR 4302 HealthCare
Oniflame Cosmetics SDR 3,333 Veropharm 3,825
ROS Agro GDR 3295 PharmacyChain3eé 3,006
Total Consumer Staples 49,544 Total Health Care 6,831
Materials Utiiies
MMC Nonilsk Nickel ADR 11,108 10GC 3.196
Novohpetsk Iron & Steel GDS g,19] Lenenergo 549
Uralkali GDR 7537 yotal utilities 3,745
0QAQ Severstal GDR 7.368
Magnitogorsk iron & Steel 2,853 Liquidity Fund
3
Mechel 2,807 jpMuys Dollar Liguidity Fund 2172
Highland Gold Mining 1,419
Polymetal International 934 TotalLiquidity Fund 2,172
Total Matenials 43,217 Total Investment Portfolio 299,786
Financials tindludes preference shares valued at £3,402,000
Sherbank Rossi* 30,224  2Compnses preference shares entirely
Bank Saint Petersburg® 4,697  mncudes ADR valued at £1,063 000 and preference shares valued at £1,744,000
Etalon GDR 3,876  “Includes ADR valued at £21,194,000.
Hals-Development GDR 433 “Includes preference shares valued at £3,525,000
éincludes ADR valued at £15,008,000
Total Financials 39,230

Tincludes GOR valued at £5,411,000
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Board of Directors

14

Lysander Tennant {Chairman}

A Director since 2002

Last reappointed to the Board 2012
Remuneration £31,000

He s an employee at Tamar Energy, a renewable energy business focusing on anaerobic
digestion He was formerly a fund manager at BZW Investment Management Limited,
and portfolio manager at American Express Asset Management Limited investing in
Russian securities

Connections with Manager None
Shared directorshups with other Directors None
Shareholding in Company 5,700

Alexander Easton*t

A Director since 2010

Last reappointed to the Board 2012
Remuneration £22,000

He was formally the head of European equities at UBS Investment Bank and managing
director responsible for UBS Brunswick (Russia)

Connections with Manager None
Shared directorships with other Directors None
Shareholding in Company 10,000

Robert Jeens (Audit Committee Chairman)*{
A Drrector since 2011

Appointed to the Board 2012
Remuneration £26,000

Following 12 years with Touche Ross & Co where he was audit partner, Mr Jeens moved
to Kleinwort Benson Greup plc, becoming Finance Director in 1992, before becoming
Group Finance Director of Woolwich plc for three years until 1999 Since then he has
developed a sigmificant knowledge of closed-end funds having previously been on the
beoard of Gartmore Fledgling Trust plc until this year and his current appointments as a
director of TR European Growth Trust PLC since 2002 and Henderson Group plc since
July 2009

Connections with Manager None
Shared directorships with other Directors None
Shareholding in Company 5000
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George Niamas*t

A Director since 2008

Last reappointed to the Board 2012
Remuneration £22,000

He s the founder and Group Chairman of Denholm Hall Group Limited He has also been
financial adwiser to several eastern European ctties including Krakow, St Petersburg and
Moscow

Connections with Manager None
Shared directorships with other Directors None
Shareholding in Company Nil \

Gill Nott (Nomination Committee Chairman)*t
A Director since 2011

Appointed to the Board 2012
Remuneration £22,000

Mrs Nott spent the majonity of the first 27 years of her career working in the energy

sector In 1994 she became CEO of ProShare Due to her work in the retail savings sector,

she spent six years on the Board of the FSA from 1998 t0 2004 Mrs Nott has held a

portfolio of non-executive positions, particularly in the closed-end fund sector, over the

last 15 years She is currently chairman of witan Pacific Investment Trust plc and a

non-executive director of Martin Currte Global Portfolio Trust plc and BlackRock Smaller

Companies Investment Trust plc Mrs Nott 1s also Deputy Chairman of the Association of

Investment Companies .

Connections with Manager None |
Shared directorships with other Directors None
Shareholding in Company 3,000

* Member of the Audit Committee
t Member of the Nomination Commiitee
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st October 2012

Business Review

Business of the Company

The Company carres on business as an investment trust and
was approved by HM Revenue & Customs as an investment
trust in accordance with Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax
Act 2010 for the year ended 31st October 2011 In the opinion
of the Directars, the Company has subsequently conducted its
affairs so that it should continue to qualify as an investment
trust under the HM Revenue & Customs’ Qualifying rules

Approval for the year ended 31st Octaber 2011 is subject to
review should there be any subsequent enquiry under
Corporation Tax Self Assessment

The Company 15 an investment company within the meaning of
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006

Areview of the Company’s activities and prospects 1s given in
the Chairman'’s Statement on pages 2 and 3, and inthe
Investment Managers' Report on pages 4 to 7

Objective
The Company’s objective 1s to provide capital growth from
Investment in Russian securities

Investment Pohioes and Risk Management

In order to achieve the investment objective and manage risk,
the Company invests in a diversified portfolio of investments in
quoted Russian securities and Russian pre-tPO stocks or other
cormparnes which derive the majonity of their revenue or gains
from operating in Russia The number of investments in the
portfolio will normally range between 30 and 60 The
investment portfolio s managed by two Russian fund
managers, one based in Moscow and one hased in London,
both of whom are fully supported by a global emerging
markets team, including sector specialists The Board also
discusses in depth the economy and political developments of
Russia at Board meetings and considers the possible
implications for the investment portfolio

Investment Limits and Restrictions
The Board seeks to manage the Company’s risk by imposing
various investment limits and restrictions

- No more than 10% of the Company’s gross assets are to be
invested in pre-IPO stocks

« The Company will not normally invest in unhisted securities
apart from pre-I1PQ stocks

« The Company will not normally invest in derivatives

« The Company will utilise hquidity and borrowings 1n a range
of 90% to 115% invested in typical market conditions There
1s currently no loan facility in place

- No more than 15% of gross assets are to be invested in
other UK listed investment compantes (including
investment trusts)

Comphance with the Board's investment restrictions and
guidelines 1s monitored continuously by the Manager and s
reported to the Board on a monthly basis

These limits and restrictions may be varied by the Board at any
time at its discretion

Performance

In the year ended 31st October 2012, the Company produced a
total return to shareholders of -6 2% and a total return on net
assets of -1 6% This compares with the return on the
Company's benchmark of -5 8% As at 31st October 2012, the
value of the Company’s investment portfolio was

£299 8 millron The Investment Managers' Report on

pages 4 to 7 includes a review of developments during the year

Total Return and Revenue

Gross return for the year totalled £203,000 {2011
£56,297,000 loss) and net loss after deducting management
fee, administrative expenses, finance costs and taxation,
amounted to £5,632,000 (2011 £64,197,000) Net revenue
return after taxation for the year amounted to £2,754,000
(2011 £350,000 10ss) No dwvidend has been proposed (2011
nil}

Key Performance Indicators ('KPIs")
The Board uses a number of financial KPIs to monttor and
assess the performance of the Company The principal KPIs are

« Performance against the benchmark
The principle objective 1s to achieve capital growih
However, the Board also monitors performance against a
benchmark index
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Performance Relative to Benchmark Index to its benchmark index, 1 e to understand the impact on the
Company's refative performance of the various

Figures have been rebased to 100 at 20th December 2002 (first day of trading) components such as asset allocation and stock selection

- Share price discount/premium to net asset value (‘'NAV') per
share
The Board has adopted a share repurchase policy which
seeks to address imbalances in the supply of and demand
for the Company’s shares in the market and thereby reduce
the volatility and absolute level of the discount to NAV per
share at which the Company’s shares trade Inthe year
ended 31st October 2012, the shares traded at a discount of
between 59% and 11 2%

Discount/Premium Performance

Source Morningstar/MSCI/CSFB

=== IPMorgan Russian Secunties - share price

=== JPMorgan Russian Securties - net asset value per share

=me Thebenchmark s represented by the grey dotted harizontal line

Performance since launch

Figures have been rebased to 100 at 20th December 2002 (first day of irading}

Source Datastream
=m JPMorgan Russian Secunties - share price discount/premium to NAV

= Ongoing Charges
The Ongoing Charges represent the Company’s
management fee and all other operating expenses
excluding finance costs, expressed as a percentage of the

Source Mormngstar/MsCI/CSFB average of the daily net assets during the year The method
== IPMorgan Russian Securties - share price of calculating the Ongoing Charges has been changed in
w==  }PMOrgan Russian Secunties - net asset value per share previous years, the Total Expense Ratio ('TER') was

wes Benchmark calculated, which represented the Company’s management

fee and other operating expenses exciuding finance costs
payable, expressed as a percentage of the average of the
month end net assets during the year The Ongoing Charges
for the year ended 315t October 2012 were 1 51%

+ Performance against the Company’s peers
The Board also monitors the performance relative to a
broad range of competitor funds

+ Performance attribution {2011 TER 182%) The Board reviews each year an analysis
The purpose of performance attribution analysisis to which shows a comparison of the Company’s Ongoing
assess how the Company achieved its performance relative Charges and Its main expenses with those of its peers
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Directors’ Report continued

Share Capital

During the year, the Company made market purchases of
1,297,200 of its own shares, nominal value £13,000, for
cancellation, representing 2 35% of the shares outstanding at
the beginning of the year The consideration paid for these
shares amounted to £6,640,000 The reason for the purchases
was to seek to reduce the volatility and absolute level of the
share price discount to net asset value per share Since the year
end the Company has repurchased a further 535,000 ordinary
shares, nominal value £5,000, for cancellation, representing
10% of the shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

A resolution to renew the authonty to repurchase shares at a
discount to NAV 15 due to be put to shareholders at the
forthcommng Annual General Meeting

The Company did not issue any new shares during the year

Principal Risks

with the assistance of the Manager the Board has drawn up a
risk matrix, which identifies the key rnisks to the Company
These key risks fall broadly under the following categories

« Investment and Strategy An inappropriate investment
strategy, for example asset allocation or the level of
gearing, may lead to underperformance against the
Company’s benchmark index and peer companies,
resulting in the Company’s shares trading on a wider
discount to NAY The Board manages these risks by
dwersification of investments through its investment
restrictions and guidehines which are monitored and
reported on by the Manager JPMAM provides the Directors
with umely and accurate management information,
ncluding performance data and attribution analyses,
revenue estimates, hiquichty reports and shareholder
analyses The Board mortors the implementation and
results of the investment process with the investment
managers, who attend all Board meetings and reviews data
which show statistical measures of the Company's risk
profile The investment managers employ the Company’s
gearing tactically, within a strategic range set by the Board
However, currently the Company has no loan facility in
place

+ Market Market nsk arises fromuncertainty about the
future prices of the Company's investments It represents
the potential loss that the Company might suffer through
holding investments in the face of negative market

movements The Board considers asset allocation stock
selection and levels of gearing on a regular basis and has
set investment restrictions and guidelines, which are
monitored and reported on by JPMAM The Board monitors
the implementation and results of the investment process
with the Manager

Accounting, Legal and Regulatory In arder to quahfy

as an Investment trust, the Company must comply

with Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010
(Section 1158") Details of the Company’s approval are
given under “Business of the Company™ above Were the
Company to breach Section 1158, it might lose Investment
trust status and, as a consequence, capital gains within the
Company's investment portfolio would be subject to Capital
Gains Tax The Section 1158 qualification criteria are
continually momitored by JPMAM and the results reported
to the Board each month The Company must also comply
with the prowvisions of the Companies Act 2006 and, as its
shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange, the UKLA
Listing Rules A breach of the Companies Act 2006 could
result in the Company and/or the Directors being fined or
the subject of criminal proceedings Breach of the UKLA
Listing Rules could result in the Company’s shares being
suspended from hsting which in turn would breach
Section 1158 The Directors seek to comply with all relevant
regulation and legislation and rely on the services of its
Company Secretary, JPMAM, and its professional advisors
to monmitar comphance with all relevant requirements

Corporate Governance and Shareholder Relations Details
of the Company's compliance with corporate governance
best practice, inciuding informatron on relations with
shareholders, are set out inthe Corporate Governance
report on pages 2110 25

Operational Disruption to, or failure of, JPMAM's
accounting, dealing or payments systems or the custodian’s
records could prevent accurate reporting and monitoning of
the Company’s financial position Details of how the Board
monitors the services provided by JPMAM and its
associates and the key elements designed to provide
effective internal control are included within the Internal
Control section of the Corporate Governance report on
page 24

Financial The financral risks faced by the Company include
market price risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
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hquidity nsk and credit nsk Further details are discfosed in
note 19 on pages 43 t0 48

« Pohltical and Economic Changes in financial or tax
legislation, including 1n the European Umon, may adversely
affect the Company The Manager makes recommendations
to the Board on accounting, dividend and tax policies and
the Board seeks external advice where appropriate In
addition, the Company Is subject to administrative risks,
such as the imposition of restrictions on the free movement
of capital

Future Developments

The future development of the Company 1s much dependent
upon the success of the Company’s iInvestment strategy m the
light of aconomic and equity market developments The
investment managers discuss the outlook in their report on
pages4to?

Management of the Company

JPMAM 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co
which, through other subsidiaries, also prowvides banking,
dealing and custodian services to the Company

The Board has evaluated the performance of the Manager and
confirms that it 1s satisfied that the continuing appointment of
the Manager 15 i the interests of shareholders as a whole In
arniving at this view, the Board considered the investment
strategy and process of the Manager, noting performance
relative to the benchmark over the long term, and the other
services that the Company receives from JPMAM

Management Agreement

JPMAM 15 employed under a contract which can be termimnated
on 90 days' notice without penalty The Manager may also
terminate the contract on 90 days’ noticef inits sole opinion
there has been a loss of confidence between the Manager and
the Company so as to make the relationship unworkable If the
Company wishes to terminate the contract on less than

90 days’ notice, the balance of the 90 days’ remuneration s
payable by way of compensation

The Manager 1s remunerated at a rate of 1 2% per annum of the
Company’s net assets, payable monthly in arrears

Investments on which JPMAM earns a separate management
fee are excluded from the Company's net assets for the
purpose of calculating the management fee No performance
fee 1s payable
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Going Concern

In assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern the Directors have considered the Company’s
investment objective (see page 16), risk management policies
(see pages 42 to 48), capital management (see note 20), the
nature of the portfolio and expenditure projections, and
believe that the Company has adequate resources, an
appropriate financial structure and suitable management
arrangements 1n place to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future For these reasons, the Directors believe
that it 1s appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the accounts

A resglution that the Company continue as an tnvestment trust
will be put to shareholders at the annual general meeting In
2017 and every five years thereafter

Payment Policy

1t 15 the Company’s policy to obtain the best terms for all
business and therefore there are no standard payment terms
In general the Company agrees with its suppliers the terms on
which business will take place and 1t 1s the Company’s policy to
abide by those terms As at 31st October 2012, the Company
had no gutstanding trade creditors (2011 none)

Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office at the end of the
year, together with their beneficial interests in the Company’s
ordinary share capital, were

315t October 15t November
Directors 2012 2011
Lysander Tennant 5,700 5,700
Alexander Easton 10,000 -
Robert Jeens' 5,000 -
George Nianias - -
Gl Nott? 3,000 -

IRchert Jeens was appainted to the Board on 14th October 2011
2Gill Nott was appointed to the Board on 17th Novemnber 2011

There have been no changes to the above beneficial interests
since the year end

In accordance with corporate governance best practice, all
Directors will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
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Directors’ Report continued

reappomtment The Nomination Commuttee, having considered
their qualifications, performance and contribution to the Board
and its commuttees, confirms that each Director continues to be
effective and demonstrates commitment to the role and the
Board recommends to shareholders that they be reappointed

Director Indemnification and Insurance

As permitted by the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Directors have the benefit of a deed of indemnity which1s a
qualifying therd party indemnity, as defined by Section 234 of
the Companies Act 2006 The deeds of indemnity were
executed on 21st January 2011 and are currently in force

An insurance policy 1s maintained by the Company which
indemnifies the Directors of the Company against certan
liabilities ansing 10 the conduct of therr duttes There s no
cover against fraudulent or dishonest actions

Disclosure of information to Auditors

In the case of each of the persons who are Directors of the
Company at the time when this report was approved

(a) sofaras each of the Directars 1s aware, there is no relevant
audit information (as defined in the Companies Act} of
which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

(b each of the Directors has taken all the steps that he/she
ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself/
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that
information

The above confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted
In accordance with the provision of Section 418{2) of the
Companies Act 2006

Section 992 Comparies Act 2006

The following disclosures are made in accordance with
Section 992 Compantes Act 2006

Capital Structure
The Company’s capital structure 1s summarnised on the inside
front cover of this report

Voting Rights in the Company's shares

Detalls of the voting nghts in the Company s shares as at the
date of this report are given In note 16 to the Notice of Annual
General Meeting on page 51
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Notifiable Interests inthe Company's Voting Rights
At the date of this report the following had declared a notfiable
interest In the Company’s voting rghts

Number of

Shareholders voting nights %

City of London Investment

Management Company Limited 14,511,181 272
Lazard Asset Management LLC 9,233,906 173 |
JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited' 5,682,884 107 i

Advance Developing Markets Fund Limited 2,929,480 55
Sarasin & Partners 1,985,201 37
Legal and General Investment Management 1,621,914 30

INen beneficial

Independent Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to continue
in office as auditor to the Company, and resolutions propasing
their reappointment and authorising the Directors to
determine their remuneration for the ensuing year will be put
to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting

NOTE THIS SECTION IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. If you are in any doubt as to the actien
you should take, you should seek your own personal financial
advice from your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor or other
financial adwiser authorised under the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000

Resolutions relatng to the following items of special business
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

() Authority toissue relevant securities and disapply pre-emption ‘
nghts (resolutions ¢ & 10) |

The Directors wikl seek renewal of the authority to 1ssue up to !

2,664,605 new shares or shares held in Treasury other than by

a pro rata Issue to existing shareholders up to an aggregate

nominal amount of £26,646, such amount being equivalent o

approxtmately 5% of the current i1ssued share capital The full

text of the resolutions 1s set out in the Notice of Meeting on

pages 49 to 51

It 15 advantageous for the Company to be able to1ssue new
shares to investors purchasing shares through the IPMAM
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savings products and also to other investors when the
Directors cansider that it 15 in the best interest of shareholders
to do so Any such issues would only be made at prices greater
than the NAV, thereby increasing the assets underlying each
share

(n} Authority to repurchase the Company's shares for cancellation
(resolution 11)
The authority to repurchase up to 1499% of the Company’s
1issued share capital, granted by shareholders at the 2012
Annual General Meeting, will expire on 13th March 2013 unless
renewed at the 2013 Annual General Meeting The Directors
consider that the renewal of the authority 1s in the interests of
shareholders as a whole as the repurchase of sharesat a
discount to the underlying NAV enhances the NAV of the
rematning shares

The full text of the resalution is set out in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting on pages 49 to 51 Repurchases will be made
at the discretion of the Board and will only be made in the
market at prices below the prevailing NAV per share as and
when market conditions are appropriate

Recommendatton

The Board considers that resclutions 9 to 11 are likely to
promote the success of the Company and are in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole

The Directors unanimously recommend that you vote in favour
of the resolutions as they intend to do in respect of their own
benehcial holdings which amount 1n aggregate to 23,700 shares
representing appraximately O 19 of the voting nights in the
Company
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Corporate Governance Statement

Comphance

The Company is committed to high standards of corporate
governance This statement, together with the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibihties in respect of the Accounts on

page 28, indicates how the Company has applied the principles
of good governance of the Financial Reporting Council's UK
Corporate Governance Code 2010 (the ‘UK Corporate
Governance Code’) and the AIC's Code of Corporate
Governance, (the ‘AIC Code’), which complements the UK
Corporate Governance Code and provides a framework of best
practice for nvestment trusts

The Board Is responsible for ensuring the appropriate level of
corporate governance and considers that, apart from certain
matters noted below the Company has complied with the best
practice provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code,
insofar as they are relevant to the Company's business, and the
AIC Code throughout the year under review

Role of the Board

A management agreement between the Company and iPMAM
sets out the matters over which the Manager has authornity This
includes management of the Company’s assets and the
provision of accounting, company secretanal, administration,
and some marketing services All other matters are reserved
for the approval of the Board A formal schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decision has previously been
approved This includes determimation and monitoring of the
Company's investment objectives and policy and its future
strategic direction, gearing policy, management of the capual
structure, appointment and removal of third party service
providers, review of key mvestment and financial data and the
Company's corporate governance and risk control
arrangements

The Board meets at least quarterly during the year and
additiona! meetings are arranged as necessary Full and timely
information is provided to the Board to enable i to function
effectively and to allow Directors to discharge their
responsibifities

There 15 an agreed procedure for Directors to take independent
professional advice If necessary and at the Company’s expense
Thisis in addition to the access that every Director has to the
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adwvice and services of the Company Secretary, JPMAM, which is
responsible to the Board for ensunng that the Board
procedures are followed and that applicable rutes and
regulations are complied with

Board Composition

During the year the Board consisted of at least five non-executive
Directors, all of whom are regarded by the Board as independent
of the Company’s Manager Mrs idelson Smith chaired the Board
until her retirement on 13th April 2012, when Mr Tennant
assumed the role The Chalrman's independence was assessed
upon his appointment and 15 re-assessed on an annual basis
Messrs Gifford and Nicholson retired from the Board on

27th January 2012 Mrs Nott was appointed to the Board on
17th November 2011 Following the retirement of Messrs
Gifford and Nicholson, their respective roles of Nomination
Committee Chairman and Audit Committee Chairman were
assumed by Mrs Nott and Mr Jeens respectively

The Directors have a breadth of investment knowledge,
business and financial skills and experience relevant to the
Company's business, and brief biographical details of each
Director are set out on pages 14 and 15

A review of Board composition and balance 1s included as part
of the annual performance evaluation of the Board, details of
which may be found below The Board has considered whether
a senior Independent director should be appointed and has
concluded that, as the Board consists entirely of non-executive
directors, this 1s unnecessary at present However, the
Nomination Committee Chairman teads the evaluation of the
performance of the Chairman and 1s available to shareholders
If they have concerns that cannot be resolved through
discussion with the Charman

Tenure

Directors are imitially appointed until the following Annual
General Meeting when, under the Company’s Articles of
Association, It is required that they be elected by shareholders
Thereafter, Directors stand for annual re-election, following the
Board's adoption of corporate governance best practice
Subject to the performance evaluation carred out each year,
the Board will agree whether it 1s appropriate for the Director
to seek an addibional term The Board does not beheve that
length of service in itself necessanly disqualifies a Director
from seeking re-election but, when making a recommendation,
the Board will take into account the requirements of the UK
Corporate Governance Code, including the need to refresh the
Board and its sub-Committees The Company's Articles of
Association require that Directors stand for re-election at least
every three years Any Director who has served {or a penod of

more than nine years will stand for annual re-election thereafter
As previously stated, the Beard has decided to acknowledge the
UK Corporate Governance Code and accordingly all Directors will
be standing for re-election at the forthcoming AGM

The terms and conditions of Directors’ appointments are set
out in formal letters of appointment, copies of which are
avatlable for inspection on request at the Company's registered
office and at the AGM

The Nomination Committee, having considered their
qualifications, performance and contribution to the Board
and its Committees, confirms that Messrs Tennant Easton,
Jeens and Miamas and Mrs Nott continue to be effective and
demonstrate commitment to the role Notwithstanding the
fact that Mr Tennant has served on the Board for more than
nine years, hus fellow Directors believe that he remains
independent in character and judgement, and accordingly
the Board recommends to shareholders that all the above
Directors be re-elected

Meetings and Committees

The Board delegates certamn responsibilities and functions to
committees Details of membership of commuitees are shown
with the Directors’ profiles on pages 14 and 15

The table betow detalls the number of Board, Audit and
Nomination Committee meetings attended by each Director
During the year there were five Board meetings, two Audit
Committee meetings and two Nomination Committee
meetings Furthermore in December 2012 the Board spent

three days in Moscow meeting a vanety of portfolio companies,

Investment analysts and market commentators, in order to
refresh their knowledge of the Russian market

Audit Nomination

Board Committee Committee

Meetings Meetings Meetings

Director Attended Attended Attended

Lysander Tennant
Alexander Easton
Pamela Idelson Smith?
Patrick Gifford®
Robert Jeens'

George Nianias

James Nicholson?

Gill Nott* 4

NN WO
B o= PR = = DN

1Attended the Intenm Audit Committee meeting by imvitation following his appontment
as Chairman

2pamela Idetson Semith retired from the Board on 13th April 2012

IPatrick Gifford and fames Nicholson retired from the Board on 27th January 2012

4Gifl Nott was appoanted to the Board on 11h November 2011
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Traiming and Appraisal

On appointment, the Manager and Company Secretary provide
all Directors with induction traiming Thereafter regular
briefings are provided on changes in regulatory requirements
that affect the Company and the Directors Directors are
encouraged to attend industry and other seminars covering
1ssues and developments relevant to investment trusts

The Board conducts a formal evaluation of the Manager its
own performance and that of its commuttees and indmdual
Directors Questtonnaires, drawn up by the Board, are
completed by each Director, the responses are collated and
then discussed at a private meeting The evaluation of
individual Directors 1s led by the Chairman, and the Chairman
of the Nomination Commuttee leads the evaluation of the
Charman's performance The Board as a whole evaluates the
Manager, its own performance and that of its Committees

Board Committee

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Commuttee, chaired by Gill Nott, consists of all
Directors and meets at least annually to ensure that the Board
has the balance of skills and experience to carry out its fiduciary
duties and to select and propose suitable candidates, for
appointment when necessary The appointment process takes
account of the benefits of diversity, iIncluding gender A variety
of sources, including the use of external recruitment
consultants, may be used to ensure that a wide range of
candidates s considered In relation to the appointment of

Mr Jeens and Mrs Nott an external recruitment consultant was
engaged by the Company

The Committee conducts an annual performance evaluation of
the Board, its committees and individual Directors to ensure that
all Directors have devoted sufficient time and contributed
adequately to the work of the Board and its Committees The
evaluation of the Board considers the balance of experience,
skills, independence, corporate knowledge, its diversity,
including gender, and how it works together Questionnaires,
drawn up by the Board, with the assistance of IPMAM and a firm
of iIndependent consultants, are completed by each Director
The responses are collated and then discussed by the
Committee The evaluation of all Directors is led by the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee who alsc meets
individually with each Director The Committee also reviews
Directors’ fees and makes recommendations to the Board as
and when required

The Committee has procedures tn place to deal with potential
confiicts of interest and confirms that there were no actual or

indirect interests of a Director which conflicted with the
interests of the Company duning the year

Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee, charred by Robert Jeens, consists of all
the Directors bar the Chairman of the Board and meets at least
twice each year The Chairman of the Board attends by
invitation of the Committeg The members of the Audit
Committee consider that they have recent and relevant
financial expertise and the requisite skills and expenence to
fulfil the responsibilities of the Commitiee

The Audit Commuttee reviews the actions and judgements of
the Manager in relation to the half year and annual accounts
of the Company and the Company's compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code it reviews the terms of the
management agreement and examines the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control systems, reviews information from
the Manager's Compliance department and also reviews the
scope and results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness
and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors
No non-audit work was undertaken by the auditors in the year
under review and the Directors remain satisfied as to their
independence Representatives of the Company’s auditors
attend the Audit Commuttee meeting at which the draft annual
report and accounts are considered The Directors’ statement
onthe Company’s system of internal control 1s set out on

page 24

Terms of Reference

Both the Nomination Commuttee and the Audit Commuttee have
written terms of reference which define clearty their respective
responsibihities, coptes of which are available for inspection on
request at the Company’s registered office, on the Company’s
website and at the Annual General Meeting

Relations with Shareholders

The Board regularly monitors the shareholder profile of the
Company It aims to provide shareholders with a full
understanding of the Company’s activities and performance
and reports formally to shareholders quarterly each year by
way of the annual report and accounts, the half year report and
two interim management statements This 1s supplemented by
the dally publication through the London Stock Exchange, of
the net asset value of the Company’s shares

During the year the Company’s broker investment managers
and JPMAM held regular discussions with larger shareholders
The Chairman and Directors make themselves available as and
when required to address shareholder queries The Directors
may be contacted through the Company Secretary whose
detalls are shown on page 53

JPMorgan Russian Securities plc. Annual Report & Accounts 2012 | 23




Directors’ Report continued

All shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company's
Annual General Meeting at which the Directors and
representatives of the Manager are available in person to meet
shareholders and answer their questions In addition, a
presentation 15 given by the investment managers who review
the Company's performance

The Company's Annual Report and Accounts 15 published in
time to give shareholders at least 20 working days’ notice of
the Annual General Meeting Shareholders wishing to raise
questions in advance of the meeting are encouraged to write
to the Company Secretary at the address shown on page 53

Details of the proxy voting on each resolution will be
pubhshed on the Company website shortly after the Annual
General Meeting

Internal Control

The UK Corporate Governance Code requires the Directors, at
least annually, to review the effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control and to report to shareholders that
they have done so This encompasses a review of all controls
which the Board has identified as mcluding business, financial,
operational, compliance and rnisk management

The Directors are responsible for the Company’s system of
internal control which 1s designed to safeguard the Company's
assets, maintain proper accounting records and ensure that
financial infformation used within the business, or pubhshed,

15 reliable However, such a system can only be designed

to manage rather than eliminate the risk of fallure to

achieve business objectives and therefore can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against fraud, material
mis-statement or loss

Since investment management custody of assets and all
administrative services are provided to the Company by
JPMAM and its assaciates, the Company’s system of internal
control mainly comprises monitoring the services provided by
JPMAM and its associates, including the operating controls
established by them, to ensure they meet the Company's
business objectives There Is an ongoing process for
Identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced
by the Company This process has been in place for the year
under review and up to the date of the approval of the Annual
Report and Accounts, and It accords with the Turnbull
guidance whilst the Company does not have an internal audst
function of its own, the Board considers that it 1s sufficient to
rely on the internal audit department of IPMAM This
arrangement 1s reviewed on an annual basis The key elements
designed to provide effective internal control are as follows

Financial Reporting - Regular and comprehensive review by
the Board of key investment and financial data, including
managament accounts revenue projections, analysis of
transactions and performance comparisons

Management Agreement - Appointment of a manager and
custodian regulated by the Financial Services Authonity (FSA),
whose responsibihities are clearly defined in a written
agreement

Manager's Systems - The Manager’s system of internal control
includes organisational agreements which clearly define the
lines of responsitulity, delegated authority, control procedures
and systems These are monitored by JPMAM's compliance
department which regularly monitors comphiance with FSA
rules and reports to the Board

Investment Strategy - Authorisation and monitonng of the
Company s investment strategy and exposure hmits by the
Board

The Board, either directly or through the Audit Committee,
keeps under review the effectiveness of the Cormnpany’s system
of internal contro! by monitoning the operation of the key
aperating controfs of the Manager and its associates as follows

= Reviews the terms of the management agreement and
recelves regular reports from JPMAM's comphiance
department,

* Reviews the reports on the internal controls and the
operations of its custodian, JPMorgan Chase Bank, which
I1s itself independently reviewed, and

= Reviews every six months an independent report on the
internal controls and the operations of JPMAM

By means of the procedures set out above, the Board confirms
that it has reviewed the effectiveness of the Company's system
of internal control for the year ended 31st October 2012, and to
the date of approval of this Annual Report and Accounts

During the course of its reviews of the system of internal
control, the Board has not identified, nor been adwised of any
failings or weaknesses which it has determned to be significant

Corporate Governance and Voting Policy

The Company delegates responsibility for voting to {PMAM
The following 1s a summary of JPMAM's policy statements on
corporate governance, voting policy and social and
environmental 1ssues, which has been reviewed and noted by
the Board
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Corporate Governance

JPMAM believes that corporate governance is integral to our investment
process As part of our commitment to delivering superior investment
performance to our clients we expect and encourage the companies i
which we invest to demonstrate the highest standards of corporate
governance and best business practice We examine the share structure
and voting structure of the companies in which we invest, as well as the
board balance, oversight functions and remuneration policy These
analyses then form the basis of our proxy voting and engagement
activity

Proxy Voting

JPMAM manages the voting rights of the shares entrusted to it as it would
manage any other asset it is the policy of JPMAM to vote ina prudent and
dilrgent manner, based exclusively on our reasonable judgement of what
will best serve the financial interests of our chents So far as is practicable,
we will vote at all of the meetings called by compames in whichwe are
tnvested

Stewardship/Engagement

JPMAM recognises ifs wider stewardship responsibilities to s clients as a
mayor asset owner To this end, we support the introduction of the FRC
Stewardship Code, which sets out the responsibifities of institutionai
shareholders in respect of investee companies Under the Code,
managers should

- publicly disclose their policy on how they will discharge thewr
stewardship responsibilities ta their chents,

- disclose therr pohcy on managing conflicts of interest,

- monnitor thewr nvestee companies,

- estabiish clear guidelings on how they escalate engagement,

- bewifing to act collectively with other investors where appropriate,

- haveaclear policy on proxy voting and disclase their voting record,
and

- reporttochents

JPMAM endarses and compiies with the Stewardship Code for its UK
investments and supports the principles as best practice elsewhere We
believe that reqular contact with the companies in which we invest is
central to our investment process and we afso recognise the importance
of being an ‘active’ owner on behalf of our chents

Social & Environmental

IPMAM believes that compamies should act i a soctally responsible
manner Although our priority at all times is the best economic interests
of our cltents we recognise that, mcreasingly, non-financial 1ssues such
as soctal and environmental factors have the potential toimpact the
share price, as well as the reputation of companies Specralists within
JPMAM's environmental, social and governance ('ESG’) team are tasked
with assessing how campanigs dealwith and report on social and
environmental risks and ssues specific to their industry

JPMAM 1s aiso a signatory to the United Nations Principles of Responsible
Investment which commts participants to stx principles, with the aim of
incorporating £5G critena mto their processes when making stock
selection decistons and promaoting ESG disclosure Our detaited approach
to how we implement the principlesis available on request JPMAM 15
also a signatory to Carbon Disclosure Project 1PMorgan Chaseisa
signatory to the Equator Principles on managing social and
environmental risk 1n project finance

JPMAM's Voting Policy and Corporate Governance Guidehnes are
availlable on request from the Company Secretary or can be
downloaded from JPMAM'Ss website

hitp //www jpmorganmvestrmenttrusts co uk/Governance This also
sets out its approach to the seven principles of the FRC Stewardship
Code, its policy relating to conflicts of interest and its detailed voting
record

&&m\/w,

By order of the Board

Alison Vincent, ACIS for and on behalf of
JPMorgan Asset Management {UK) bimited,
Secretary

30th January 2013
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Board has prepared this Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 421 of the Companies Act 2006

An ardinary resolution to approve this Report 1s to be put to
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

The law requires the Company's auditors to audit certain of the
disclosures provided Where disclosures have been audited,
they are indicated as such The auditors’ opinion is included in
thewr report on page 29

Directors’ Remuneration’

2012 2011
Directors’ Name £ £
Pamela Idelson Smith (Chairman)? 14,200 31,000
Lysander Tennant (Charrman)? 26,881 22,000
Alex Easton 22,000 22,000
Patrick Gifford® 5,359 22,000
Robert Jeens® 25,050 1,015
George Nianias 22,000 22,000
James Nicholson* 6,333 25,246
Gill Nott® 21,013 -
Paul Tetek’ - 4953
Total 142,386 150,194

lAudited information

Retired from the Board on 13th Apnil 2012

3appotnted Chairman an 13th April 2012

“Retred from the Board on 27th January 2012

SAppointed Audit Committee Chairman on 27th January 2012
sAppointed on 17th November 2011

"Retired from the Board on 10th January 2011

No amounts were paid to third parties for making avallable the
services of Directors {2011 £nil)

In the year under review, Directors' fees were paid at the
following rates Chairman £31,000 per annum, Audit
Committee Chairman £26,000 per annum, and other Directors
£22,000 per annum Directors’ fees were last increased with
effect from 1st November 2010
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Remuneration Policy

The Board's policy for this and subsequent years is that
Directors’ fees should praperly reflect the time spent by the
Directors on the Company's business and should be at a level
to ensure that candidates of high calibre are recruited to the
Board The Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the
Audit Committee are pad higher fees than the other Directors,
reflecting the greater commitment involved in fulfilling

those roles

As ali of the Directors are non-executive, the Board has not
established a Remuneration Committee Instead the policy of
the Board 1s for the Nomination Commuttee to review Directors’
fees on a regular basis and make recommendations to the
Board as and when appropriate Reviews are based on
nformation provided by the Manager, JPMorgan Asset
Management (UK} Limited and relevant third parties on the
level of fees paid to the directors of the Company’s peers and
within the investment trust industry generally The Directors’
fees are not performance-related The Articles of Association
of the Company stipulate that aggregate fees must not exceed
£200 000 per annum Any ncrease in the maximum aggregate
amount requires both Board and shareholder approval

The terms and condiions of Directors’ appointments are set
out in formal letters of appointment Directors are imibially
appointed untif the following Annual General Meeting when
under the Company’s Articles of Association, it 1s required that
they be elected by shareholders Thereafter, a Director’s
appontment will run for a three year term A Director may then
be invited by the Board to serve for a further three years

A Director’s continuing appointment 1s subject to re-election
by shareholders The Board has resolved to comply with the UK
Corporate Governance Code and accordingly all Directors will
be standing for re-election at the forthcoming Annua! General
Meeting

The Company does not operate any type of incentrve or
pension scheme and therefore no Directors receive bonus
payments or penston contributions from the Company or hold
options to acquire shares in the Company Directors are not
paid compensation for loss of office No other payments are
made to Directors, other than the reambursement of
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reasonable out-of-pocket expenses wmcurred in connection with
attending to the Company’s business

A graph showing the Company's share price total return
compared with the Company’'s benchmark index, 15 set out
below Detalls of the Company's performance since inception
are set out on page 10

Five year share price total return and
benchmark to 31st October

Souree Morningstar/MSCI/CSFB
=  Share pnce total return
== Benchmark!

1The Benchmark 1s the MSCI Russian 10/40 Equity Indices Index i sterfing terms

Blun- Vet

By order of the Board

Alison Vincent, ACIS for and an behalf of
JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited,
Secretary

30th lanuary 2013
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Statement of Directors’

Responsibilities

The Directors are responstble for preparing the annual report
and accounts in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law, the Directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accerdance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards} and applicable law
Under Company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Company for that period In prepanng
these financial statements, the Directars are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, and

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial staterments

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and to enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Compantes Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregulanties

The accounts are published on the www Jpmrussian co uk
website, which 1s maintained by the Company’s Manager,
JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited ((JPMAM’) The
maintenance and integnty of the website maintained by
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JPMAM 1s, so far as it relates to the Company, the
responsibility of JPMAM The work carnied out by the auditors
does not tnvolve consideration of the mantenance and
integrity of this website and, accordingly, the auditors accept
no responsibility for any changes that have occurred to the
accounts since they were initially presented on the website
The accounts are prepared 1n accordance with UK legislation,
which may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Under applicable law and regulations the Directors are also
responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report and Directors’
Remuneration Report that comply with that law and those
regulations

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are hsted in
the Directors’ Report confirm that to the best of thewr
knowledge

« the finanoal statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards) and applicable law, give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, frnancial position and return or loss of
the Company, and

« the Directors Report includes a farr review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company, together with a description of the
principal nisks and uncertainties that it faces

For and on behalf of the Board
Lysander Tennant
Chairman

30th January 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

tndependent Audrtor’s Report to the members of JPMorgan Russian
Securities plc

We have audited the financial statements of JPMorgan Russian
Securities plc ('the Company’} for the year ended 31st October
2012 which comprise the Income Statement, Reconcihation of
Movements in Shareholders Funds, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow
Statement, and the related notes 1to 20 The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report i1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors
Responsibiliies set out on page 28, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 1
to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board s {APB s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

An audit mvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This
includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the Company s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements
In addition we read all the financial and non-financial mformation
in the Annual Report and Accounts to identify matenal
Inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we
become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
inconsistencies, we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on the Financial Statements
In our opimion the financial statements
+ giveatrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs

as at 31st October 2012 and of its net loss for the year then
ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with Urited
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In Qur opInIon

« the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 and

the information given in the Directors' Report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
Is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you

if, 1N our opimion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches visited by us, or

« the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made, or

- we have not receved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

under the Listing Rules we are required to review

+ the Directors’ statement, set out on page 19 n relation to
going concern

+ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to
the Company s compliance with the nine provisions of the UK
Carporate Governance Code specified for our review, and

+ certam elements of the report to shareholders by the Board
on Directors’ remuneration

Makeed- Tle ALK

Michael-John Albert (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London

30th January 2013
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Income Statement

for the year ended 31st October 2012

2012 2011
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Notes £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Losses on investments held at
farr value through profit or loss 2 - (7969) (7969) - (63,520) (63,520)
Net foreign currency losses - (417) (417) - (327) (327}
Income from investments 3 8,581 - 8,581 7548 - 7548
Other interest recewvable and similar income . 3 8 - 8 2 - 2
Gross return/(loss) 8,589 (8,386) 203 7550 (63,847) (56,297)
Management fee 4 (3,715) - (3,715) {5,760) - (5.760)
Other administrative expenses 5 (978) - {978) (1,170) - (1,170)
Net return/(loss) on ordinary activities
before finance costs and taxation 3,896 (8,386) (4,490} 620 (63,847) (63,227)
Finance costs ) (5) - (5) {0 - 1M
Net return/(loss) on ordinary activities
hefore taxation 3,891 (8,386) (4,495) 619 (63,847) {(63,228)
Taxation 7 (1,137) - (1,137) (969) - (969)
Net return/(loss) on ordinary activities
after taxation 2,754 (8,386) (5,632) (350} (63,847 64,197)
Return/(loss) per share 8 5.03p {1532)p  (10.29)p 0863)p {115 53)p (116 16)p

All revenue and capital items in the above statement derive from continuing operations No operations were acquired or
discontinued in the year

The ‘Total’ column of this statement is the Profit and Loss Account of the Company and the Revenue’and Capital columns
represent supplementary information prepared under guidance issued by the Association of Investment Companies The Total
column represents ail the information that 15 required to be disclosed in a Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
{('STRGL'} For this reason a STRGL has not been presented

The accompanying notes on pages 34 to 48 form an integral part of these accounts
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Reconciliation of Movements in
Shareholders’ Funds

Calledup Capital
share Other redemption Capital Revenue
capital reserve reserve reserves reserve Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
At 31st October 2010 553 49281 48 330771 {4,550) | 376,103
Repurchase of the Company’s own shares for cancellation 2) (799) 2 - - {799)
Net 1oss on ordinary activities - - - {63,847) (350) | (64,197)
At 31st October 2011 551 48,482 50 266924 (4900} | 311,107
Repurchase of the Company's own shares for cancellation (13) - 13 (6.640) - | (6,640)
Net (Joss)/return on ordinary actities - - - (8,386) 2754 (5,632)
At 31st October 2012 538 484872 63 251,898 (2,146) | 298,835

The accompanying notes on page 34 to 48 form an integral part of these accounts
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Balance Sheet

at 31st October 2012
2012 2011
Notes £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss 297,614 304,496
Investment in hguidity fund held at fair value through profit or loss 2,172 7666
Total investment portfolio 9 299,786 312,162
Current assets 10
Debtors 1,013 319
Cash and short term deposits 4,217 102
5,230 421
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 11 (6,181) {1,476)
Net current habilities (951) (1.055)
Total assets less current habilities 298,835 311,107
Net assets 298,835 311,107
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 12 538 551
Other reserve 13 48,482 48,482
Capital redemption reserve 13 63 50
Capital reserves 13 251,898 266,924
Revenue reserve 13 {2,146) (4,900)
Total equity shareholders’ funds 298,835 311,107
Net asset value per share 14 555.2p 564 4p

The accounts on pages 30 to 48 were approved and authorised for issue by the Directors on 30th January 2013 and were signed

on their behalf by

Lysander Tennant
Chairman

The accompanying notes on pages 34 to 48 form an integral part of these accounts

Company registration number 4567378

32

JPMorgan Russian Securities ple. Annual Report & Accounts 2012




Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31st October 2012

2012 2011
Notes £'000 £'000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 15 2,730 1,453
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest pald {5) ]
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchases of investments (177,769) (76,764}
Sales of iInvestments 184,693 73.827
Other capital charges (372) (285)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from capital expenditure
and financial investment 6,552 (3,222)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) before financing 9,277 (1,770)
Financing
Repurchase of the Company's own shares for cancellatton (4,745) {799)
Net cash outflow from financing (4,745) {799)
Increase/({decrease) in cash for the year 16 4,532 {2,569

The accompanying notes on pages 34 to 48 form an integral part of these accounts
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Notes to the Accounts

for the year ended 31st October 2012
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Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The accounts are prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice ( UK GAAP") and with the Statement of Recommended Practice ‘Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies
and Venture Capital Trusts' {the SORP") 1ssued by the Associatton of Investment Companies in January 2009 All of the
Company's operations are of a continuing nature

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investments at fair value

The policies applied 1n these accounts are consistent with those applied in the preceding year

valuation of investments

The Company’s business s mvesting in financial assets with a view to profiting from their total return in the form of income
and capital growth This portfolio of financial assets is managed and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with a documented investment strategy and information about the portfolio 1s provided internally on that basis to
the Board of Directors Accordingly, upon initial recognition, the investments are designated by the Company as ‘held at fair
value through profit or loss’ They are included initially at fair value which is taken to be their cost excluding expenses
incidental to acquisition which are charged to the capital column of the income statement at the ttme of acquisition
Subsequently the iInvestments are valued at fair value, which are quoted bid prices for investments traded in active markets

Gains and losses on sales of investments are included in the Income Statement and are dealt with in capital reserves within
‘Gains and fosses on sales of investments’ and represent the excess of sales proceeds over the carrying value at the previous
balance sheet date Increases and decreases i the valuation of iInvestments held at the year end are included in the Income
Statement and are accounted for in capital reserves within ‘Holding gains and losses on investments’

All purchases and sales are dealt with on a trade date basis

Income
Dividends recevable from equity shares are included in revenue on an ex-dividend basis except where, in the opiion of the
Board, the dividend 1s capital in nature, in which case 1t 1s taken to capital

Overseas dividends are shown gross of any wathholding tax
Deposit Interest receivable 1s taken to revenue on an accruals basis

Expenses

All expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis Expenses are allocated wholly to revenue with the exception of expenses
incidental to the purchase or sale of an investment which are charged to the capital celumn of the income statement These
expenses are commonly referred to as transaction costs and comprise mainly brokerage commisston

Finance costs
Finance costs are accounted for on an effective interest rate basis and are allocated wholly to revenue

Financial instruments
Cash and short term deposits may comprise cash and demand deposits which are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and are subject to insigmificant risk of changes in value

Other debtors and creditors do not carry any nterest or significant price nsk exposure and are accordingly stated at cost, as
reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts

The Company has not utilised any denvative financial instruments in the current or comparative year
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(g) Foreign currency

In accordance with FRS 23 ‘The effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates’ the Company is required to nominate a
functional currency, being the currency in which the Company predominantly operates The Board, having regard to the
currency of the Company’s share capital and the predominant currency in which its shareholders operate, has determined that
sterling is the functional currency Sterling 1s also the currency in which the accounts are presented

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are converted at actual exchange rates at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and habilities and equity investments held at fair value denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the year end

Any gain or loss arising from a change 1 exchange rates subsequent to the date of the transaction 1s included as an exchange
gamn or 1058 in revenue or capital, depending on whether the gain or loss 1s of a revenue or capital nature Gans and losses on
investments arising from a change 1n exchange rates are included in ‘Holding gains and losses on investments’

(h) Taxation

U]

W

Current tax 15 provided at the amount expected to be paid or recovered
Deferred taxation 15 accounted for in accordance with FRS 19 ‘Deferred tax’

Deferred taxation 1s provided on all tirming differences that have onginated but not reversed by the balance sheet date
Deferred taxation habilities are recognised for all taxable trming differences but deferred taxation assets are only recognised
to the extent that it 1s more likely than not that taxable profits will be available against which those timing differences can be
utilised

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rate which 1s expected to apply in the penods in which the timung diferences are expected
to reverse, hased on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and s measured on
an undiscounted basis

value Added Tax (‘VAT")
Irrecoverable VAT 15 included in the expense on which it has been suffered Recoverable VAT 1s calculated using the part:al
exemption method based on the proportion of zero rated supplies to total supples

Repurchase of ordinary shares for cancellation

The cost of repurchasing ordinary shares including the related stamgp duty and transaction costs I1s charged to ‘Capital
reserves’ and dealt with in the Reconcaliation of Movement in Shareholders’ Funds Share repurchase transactions are
accounted for on a trade date basis The nominal value of ordinary share capital repurchased and cancelled 1s transferred
out of called up share capital and into the capital redemption reserve

2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Losses on investments held at fair value through profit or loss
Gains on sales of investrments held at fair value through profit or loss based on

historical cost 7,513 12,169
Amounts recognised as investment holding gains and losses at the previous

balance sheet date in respect of iInvestments sold duning the year 5,753 (9,346)
Gains on sales of investments based on carrying value at the

previous balance sheet date 13,266 2,823
Net movement in investment holding gains and losses (20,896) (66,0200
Capitat charges (339) (323)
Total capital losses on investments held at fair value through profit or loss (796%9) (63.520)
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Notes to the Accounts continued
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2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Income
Overseas dividends 8,574 7532
Dividends from liguidity fund 7 16
8,581 7548
Other interest receivable and similar income
Deposit interest 8 2
Total 8,589 7,550
2012 2011
£°000 £'000
Management fee
Management fee* 3,715 5,760
"petails of the management fee are grven in the Directors’ Repart on page 19
2012 2011
£000 £'000
Other administrative expenses
Administration expenses 563 605
Safe custody fees 179 302
Directors' fees' 142 150
Savings scheme costs’ 7 87
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services’® 23 26
Total 978 1,170
Full disclosure 1s given In the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 26 and 27
2These fees were paid to JPMAM for the marketing and adminestration of savings scheme products
3No fees were paid Lo the audtors for non audit services (2011 nil)
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Finance costs
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 5 1
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7

Taxation
(a) Analysis of tax charge in the year
2012 201
£000 £°000
UK corporation tax at 24 83% (2011 26 83%) 7i4 17
Double taxation relief (na) an
Overseas withholding tax 1,137 969
Current tax 1,137 968

(b) Factors affecting current tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is higher (2011 higher) than the Company’s apphicable rate of corporation tax for the year of
24 83% (2011 26 83%) The factors affecting the current tax charge for the year are as follows

(©

2012 2011
Revenue Capital Total | Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'00Q
Net return/{loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 3,891 (8,386) (4,495) 619 (63,847) (63,228)
Net return/(foss) on ordinary activities before taxation
multiphed by the Company’s applicable rate of
corporation tax of 24 83% (2011 26 83%) 966 (2,083) (1,117) 166 (17.130) (16964}
Effects of
Non taxable capital losses - 2,083 2,083 - 17130 17130
Non taxable overseas dividends (259) - (259) (305) - (305)
Income taxed n different periods 9 - 9 555 - 555
Overseas withholding tax 1,137 - 1,137 969 - 969
Double taxation relief {(714) - (714) 4] - a7
Prior years' excess expenses utilised 2 - 2 (399) - (399)
Current tax charge for the year 1,137 - 1,137 969 - 969

Deferred taxation

The Company has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £698,000 (2011 £708,000) based on a prospective corporation tax
rate of 24% (2011 25%) The reduction in the standard rate of corporation tax was substantively enacted on 26th March 2012
and was effective from 1st Apnl 2012 The Government has also indicated that it intends to enact future reductions in the main
rate of corporation tax of 1% each year down to 20% by 1st Apnil 2016 The deferred tax asset has arisen due to the cumulative
excess of deductible expenses over taxable income Given the composition of the Company's portfolio, it s not likely that this

asset will be utilised tn the foreseeable future and therefore no asset has been recognised in the accounts

Given the Company's status as an Investment Trust Company and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to
obtawn approval, the Company has not provided for deferred tax on any capital gains or losses arising on the revaluation or

disposal of investments
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Notes to the Accounts continued

8 Return/{toss) pershare

The revenue return per share is based on the revenue return attributable to the ordinary shares of £2,754,000 {2011 £350.000
loss) and on the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the year of 54,744,578 (2011 55,263,230}

The capital loss per share 1s based on the capital loss attributable to the ordinary shares of £8,386,000 (2011 £63,847.000)
and on the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the year of 54,744,578 (2011 55,263.230)

The total loss per share 1s based on the total loss attnbutable to the ordinary shares of £5,632,000 (2011 £64,197,000) and on
the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the year of 54 744,578 {2011 55,263,230)

9. investments

2012 2011
£000 £000
Investments listed on a recognised stock exchange 297,614 304 496
Investment in hguidity fund 2,172 7666
299,786 312,162
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Opening book cost 335,362 319,083
Opening investment holding gains/(losses) (23,200) 52,166
Qperung valuation 312,162 371,249
Movements In the year
Purchases at cost 180,666 78003
Sales - proceeds (185,412) (73893)
Gains on sales of investments based on the carrying value at the previous
balance sheet date 13,266 2.823
Net movement in investment holding gains and losses (20,896) (66 020)
Clostng valuation 299,786 312162
Closing book cost 338,129 335362
Closing investment holdings losses (38,343} (23,200}
Total investments held at fair value through profit or loss 299,786 312,162

Transaction costs on purchases during the year amounted to £495,000 (2011 £360,000) and on sales during the year
amounted to £149,000 (2011 £60,000) These costs comprise matnly brokerage commission

Duning the year, prior year holding gains amounting to £5,753,000 (2011 £9,346,000) have been transferred to gans and
losses on sales of investments as disclosed in note 13
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2012 2011
£000 £'000
10 Current assets

Debtors
Secunties sold awaiting settlement 785 66
Dmwidends and interest recevable 177 202
Other debtors 51 5l
Total 1,013 319

11.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of debtors approximates to thewr fair value

Cash and short term deposits

Cash and short term deposits comprises bank balances and short term deposits The carryingamount of these represents
their fair value Cash balances in excess of a predetermined amount are placed on short term deposit at market rates of
mterest

2012 2011
£'000 £000

Credrtors: amounts falling due within ane year
Securities purchased awaiting settiement 4,136 1,239
Amounts payable for redemption of the Company s own shares 1,895 -
Other creditors and accruals 150 237
Total 6,181 1,476

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of creditors falling due within one year approximates to their fair value

2012 2011
£000 £000
. Share capital

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 1p each
Opening bafance of 55,124,312 (2011 55,284,312) shares 551 553
Repurchase and tanceflation of 1,297,200 (2011 160,000) shares (13} 2
Clesing balance of 53,827,112 (2011 55,124,312) shares 538 550

During the year, the Company made market purchases of 1,297,200 of its own shares, nomnal value £13,000, for cancellation,
representing 2 35% of the shares outstanding at the beginning of the year The consideration paid for these shares amounted
to £6,640,000 The reason for the purchases was to seek to reduce the valablity and absolute level of the share price discount
to net asset value per share

The holders of ordinary shares carry the nght to receive all the revenue profits of the Company available for distribution and

from time to time determined by the Directors to be distributed by way of dividend The holders of the ordinary shares hold all
voting rights and are entitled to all the assets of the Company on a return of capital, return of assets or on a winding up
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Notes to the Accounts continued

Capital reserves
Capitat Gansand Holding gains

Other redemption  lossesonsales andlosseson Revenue

reserve reserve  of nvestments  Investments reserve

£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

13 Reserves
Opening balance 48,482 50 290,124 (23.200) {4500}
Farergn exchange losses on cash and short term deposits - - 417) - -
Gains on sales of investments based on the carrying value

at the previous balance sheet date - - 13,266 - -

Net movement in investment holding gains and losses - - - (20,896) -
Transfer on disposal of investments - - (5753) 5753 -
Repurchase of the Company's own shares for cancellation - 13 (6,640) - -
Other capital charges - - (339) - -
Revenue return for the year - - - - 2,754
Closing balance 48,482 63 290,241 (38,343) (2,146)

14 Net asset value per share

The net asset value per share 1s based on the net assets attributable to the ordinary shareholders of £298.835,000
{2011 £311,107.000) and on the 53,827112 (2011 55,124,312) shares In 1ssue at the year end

2012 2011
£'000 £000
15. Reconciliation of total loss on ordinary activities before finance costs
and taxatron to net cash inflow from operating activities

Total loss on ordinary activities before finance costs and taxation (4,490) 63,227}
Add back capital loss before finance costs and taxation 8,386 63,847
Decrease In accrued income 25 1766
Increase in other debtors - (33)
(Decrease)/increase In accrued expenses (54) 69
Overseas withholding tax (1,137) (969)
Net cash inflow from operauing activities 2,730 1,453
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At At
315t October Exchange 31st October
201 Cash flow movement 2012
£000 £'000 £000 £'000

16 Analysis of changes in net funds
Cash and short term deposits 102 4532 417) 4,217
Net funds 102 4,532 (417) 4,217

17

Transactions with the Manager

Details of the management contract are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 19 The management fee payable to JPMAM
for the year was £3,715,000 (2011 £5,760 000) of which €l (2010 £nil) was outstanding at the year end 1n addiion £71,000
(2011 £87.000) was payable to IPMAM for marketing and administration of the Company's savings scheme products, of which
£6,000 (2011 £nil) was outstanding at the year end

Included in note 5 on page 36 are safe custody fees amounting to £179,000 (2011 £302,000) payable to JPMorgan Chase of
which £37,000 {2011 £92,000) was outstanding at the year end

Handling charges on transactions during the year amounting to £339,000 (2011 £323,000) were payable to JPMorgan Chase
of which £9,000 (2011 £42,000) was cutstanding at the year end

During the year, the Company held an investment in the JPM US Dollar Liquidity Fund At 31st Qctober 2012, the Company’s
investment in this fund was valued at £2,172,000 (2011 £7,666 000) representing 0 73% (2011 2 5%) of the Company’s
investment portfolic During the year, the Company made purchases of this fund with a total value of £52,542,000

{2011 £26,010,000) and sales with a total value of £58 246,000 (2011 £18,185,000) Income receivabie from this fund in the
year amounted to £7,000 (2011 £16,000) of which £n1l (2011 £nil) was outstanding at the year end

At the year end, a bank balance of £4,217.000 (2011 £102 000) was held with JPMorgan Chase and placed on deposit with an
approved list of banks A net amount of interest of £8,000 (2011 £2,000) was recelvable by the Company during the year from
JPMorgan Chase of which £mil (2011 €mil} was outstanding at the year end
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Notes to the Accounts continued

18 Disclosures regarding financial Instruments measured at fair value

The Company's financial instruments that are held at fair value compnise its investment portfolio The Company currently
holds no denvative financral instruments and its iabihities are not held at far value

The investments are categonised into a hterarchy consisting of the following three levels
Levell - valued using quoted prices in active markets

Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted market prices included
within Level 1 Quoted investments which are deemed to be less liquid due to a lower level of trading valume in the
period prior to the year end, are also included in Level 2

Level 3 - valued by reference to valuation techrigues using inputs that are not based on observable market data

Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair
value measurement of the relevant asset

Detalls of the valuation techniques used by the Company are given in note 1 on page 34

The followng table sets out the fair value measurements using the FRS 29 hierarchy at 31st October

2012
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 }
|
Financial instrirments held at fair value through profit or loss
Equity investments 270,579 27,035 - 297,614
Investment in liquichty fund 2,172 - - 2,172
Total 272,751 27,035 - 299,786
2011
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss
Equity Investments 272,018 32478 - 304 496
Investment in liquidity fund 7666 - - 7666
Total 279684 32,478 - 312,162

There have been no transfers into or out of level 3 during the current or comparative year

The Company s equity mvestments are all traded in active markets, however, the Board has determmed that stocks with a
market value of £270 million (2011 £32 5 million) are less hiquid than the remainder of the portioho, based on trading volumes
in the period pnior to the year end, and these have been icluded 0 Level 2
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19 Finanaal instruments' exposure to sk and nisk management pohicies

(a

—

As an investment trust, the Company invests in equities and other secunities for the long term so as to secure its investment
cbjective stated on the "Features’ page inside the front cover In pursuing this objective, the Company 1s exposed to a variety of
financial nisks that could result in a reduction in the Company’s net assets or a reduction in the profits available for dwvidends
These risks include market risk {comprising currency risk, interest rate nsk and other price nsk), iquidity nsk and credit nisk
The Directors pohicy for managing these risks is set out below The Company Secretary, mn close cooperation with the Board
and the Manager, coordinates the Company’s risk management strategy

The objectives, policies and processes for managing the nsks and the methods used to measure the risks that are set out
below, have not changed from those applying in the comparative year

The Company's financial instrurments comprise the following

- nvestments in Russian equity shares which are held in accordance with the Company’s investment objective,
- als$ liqudity fund, and

- debtors, creditors and cash arising directly from its operations

Market risk

The fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrurnent held by the Company may fluctuate because of changes in market
prices This market nsk comprises three elements - currency risk, interest rate risk and other price nsk Information to enable
an evaluation of the nature and extent of these three elements of market nsk 1s given in parts () to {m) of this note, together
with sensitivity analyses where appropriate The Board reviews and agrees palicies for managing these risks, and these
pohcies have remained unchanged from those applying in the comparative year The Manager assesses the exposure to
market risk when making each investment decision and morutors the overall level of market nisk on the whole of the
investment portfolio on an ongoing basis

() Currencyrisk
Certam of the Company's assets, habilities and income are denominated in currencies other than sterling which is the
Company's functional currency and the currency in which it reports As a result, movements in exchange rates may affect
the sterling value of those items

Management of currency risk

The Manager monmitors the Company's exposure to foreign currencies on a danly basis and reports to the Board, which
meets on at least four occasions each year The Manager measures the nisk to the Company of the foretgn currency
exposure by considering the effect on the Company's net asset value and income of a movement in the rates of exchange
to which the Company's assets, liabilities, income and expenses are exposed Foreign currency borrowing may be used to
lirmit the Company's exposure to anticipated changes in exchange rates which might otherwise adversely affect the value
of the portfolio of investments This borrowing would be hmited to currencies and amounts commensurate with the asset
exposure {o those currencies Income denominated in foreign currencies s converted to sterhng on receipt The Company
may use short term forward currency contracts to manage working capital requirements
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Notes to the Accounts continued

19. Financialinstruments’ exposure to nsk and risk management policies continued

(a) Market risk continued

44

(1)}

Currency nsk continued

Fareign currency exposure

The fair values of the Company's monetary items that have foreign currency exposure at 31st October are shown below
Where the Company’s equity investments, which are not monetary items, are priced 1n a foreign currency, they have been
included separately in the analysis so as to show the overall level of exposure

2012
Swedish
us$ Ruble Krona EUR Total
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Investments held at fair value through profit or
loss that are monetary stems 2172 - - - 2,172
Net current liabilities 743 95 - 1 839
Foreign currency exposure on net monetary
items 2915 o5 - 1 3,011
Equity investments held at fair value 284,079 - 11,182 - 295,261
Total net foreign currency expasure 286,994 o5 11,182 1 298,272
2011
Swedish
uss Ruble Krona Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Investments held at fair value through profit or
loss that are monetary items 7666 - - 7666
et current habilities (869} - - (869}
FareIgn currency exposure on net monetary
items 6,797 - - 6,797
Equity investments held at fair value 294972 - 9.276 304,248
Total net foreign currency exposure 301,769 - 9,276 31,045

The above year end amounts are broadly representative of the exposure to foreign currency nsk duning the year

Equity investments held at fair value through profit or foss have all been included under their respective currency
exposure In the tables above, because they are priced in that currency However it should be noted that these companies
are primanly exposed to the rouble

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables illustrate the sensitivity of the return after taxation for the year and net assets with regard to the
Company’s overseas income and monetary financial assets and financial habilities and exchange rates The sensitivity
analysis 15 based on the Company’'s monetary currency financial instruments held at each balance sheet date and assumes
a10% (2011 10%) appreciation or depreciation in sterling against the US$, the rouble and the swedish krona The
Company’s monetary foreign currency financial instruments are predominantly exposed to the US$ and this is deemed a
reasonable illustration based on the volatility of the sterling/US% exchange rate during the year
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If sterhng had weakened by 10% this would have had the following effect

2012 2011
£'000 £000
income statement return after taxation
Revenue return 858 755
Capital return 301 680
Total return after taxation for the year 1,159 1,435
Net assets 1,159 1435
Conversely if sterling had strengthened by 10% this would have had the following effect
2012 2011
£000 £000
Income statement return after taxation
Revenue return (858) {755}
Capital return (301) (680}
Total return after taxation for the year (1,159} (1,435}
Net assets (1,159) {1,435)

In the apinon of the Directors, the above sensitivity analysis 1s broadly representative of the whole year

Interest rate risk

Interest rate movements may affect the level of Income receivable from cash deposits and the iquidity fund The Company

has no exposure to fair value interest rate risk

Management of interest rate risk

The Company does not normally hold significant cash balances Short term borrowings may be used when required,

however the Company currently has no loan facility in place

Interest rate exposure

The exposure of financial assets and habilities to floating interest rates, giving cash flow interest rate rnisk when rates are

re-set, 15 shown below

2012 2011

£000 £000
Exposure to fioating interest rates
IPM US ballar Liguidity Fund 2,172 7666
Cash and short term deposits 4,217 102
Total exposure 6,389 7768
The target interest earned on the JPM US Dollar Liguidity Fund 1s the 7 day US Dollar London Interbank Bid Rate
Interest recervable on cash balances is at a margin below LIBOR
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19 Financal instruments’ exposure to risk and nisk management policies continued

(3) Market nsk continued
(n) Interest rate nisk continued

46

Interest rate exposure continued

The exposure to floating interest rates during the year fluctuated as follows

2012 2011

£000 £'000

Maximum net credit and Liquidity Fund balances 8,383 16907
Mimmum net (debit)/credit and Liguidity Fund balances (36) 1804

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table llustrates the sensitivity of the return after taxation for the year and net assets to a 0 5% (2011 05%)
Increase or decrease In interest rates In regards to the Company's monetary financial assets and financeal habibties This level
of change 1s considered to be a reasonable 1llustration based on observation of current market conditions The sensitivity
analysis 1s based on the Company’s monetary financeal instruments held at the balance sheet date, with all other vanables

held constant

2012 2011

0 5% ncrease O 5% decrease |0 5% increase 0 5% decrease
Inrate In rate In rate Inrate
£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Income statement - return after taxation
Revenue return 32 (32} 39 {39
Capital return - - - -
Total return after taxation for the year 32 (32) 39 {(39)
Net assets 32 (32} 39 (39)

In the opimion of the Directors, the above sensitivity analysis may not be representative of future years

() Other price nisk
Other price risk includes changes in market prices, other than thase ansing from interest rate nisk or currency risk, which

may affect the value of investments

Management of other price nsk

The Board meets on at least four occasions each year to consider the asset allocation of the portfolio and the nsk
assoclated with particular industry sectors The investment management team has responsibility for monitaring the
portfoho, which s selected in accordance with the Company's investment objective and seeks to ensure that individual

stocks meet an acceptable nsk/reward profile

Other price nisk exposure
The Company's exposure ta changes in market prices at 31st October comprises its haldings in equity investments as
follows
2012 2011
£000 £'000
Equity investments held at fair value through profit or loss 297,614 304,496

The above data s broadly representative of the exposure to other price risk during the current and comparative year
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Concentration of exposure to other price risk

An analysis of the Company s investments 1s given on pages 11 to 13 The equity portiolio entirely comprises Russian
companies Accordingly there is a concentration of exposure to that country However it should be noted that an
investment may not be wholly exposed to the economic conditions in 1ts country of dormicile

Other price nsk sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the return after taxation for the year and net assets to an increase or
decrease of 10% (2011 10%) in the fair value of the Company s equity investments This level of change does not reffect the
unusual market volatility over the past three years and is presented purely as an llustration The sensitivity analysis s
based on the Company’s equity Investments and adjusting for change in the management fee, but with all other vanables

held constant

2012 2011

10% increase 10% decrease 109% increase 10% decrease

in fair value In fair value in far value n far value

£'000 £000 £000 £'000

income statement - return after taxation

Revenue return (446) 446 {457) 457
Capital return 29,761 (29,761) 30450 (30,450}
Total return after taxation for the year and net assets 29,315 (29,315) 29,993 (29.993)

(b} Liquidity risk

Thus is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial abiliies that are

settled by delivering cash or another financal asset

Managemaent of the nsk

Liquidity risk 1s not significant as the Company's assets comprise readhly realisable securities which can be sold to meet
funding requirements If necessary There 1s currently ne loan facility in place

Liquidity risk exposure

Contractual maturities of the financial lamhities at the year end, based on the earliest date on which payment can be required

by the lender are as follows

2012 2011
Three months Three months
or less orless
£000 £°000

Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Securities purchased awaiting settlement 4,136 1,239
Capital shares redeemed payable 1,895 -
Other creditors and accruals 150 237
Tota! finanoial habilities 6,181 1476
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19
(c)

@

—

20

48

Financial instruments’ exposure to risk and risk management polictes continued

Credit nisk
Credit nsk1s the nisk that the counterparty to a transaction fails to discharge its obligations under that transactton which could
result in a loss to the Company

Management of credit risk

Portfolio dealing

The Manager's process for the exchange of securities and cash 1s designed to rmirimise the risk of losing the principal of a
trade during the settlement process The Manager continuously monitors dealing activity to ensure best execution, a process
that involves measuring various indicators including the quality of trade settlement and incidence of failed trades
Counterparty lists are mantained and adjusted accordingly

Cash
Counterparties are subject to daily credit analysis by the Manager and trades can only be placed with counterparties that have
a mimimum credit rating of A1/P1 from Standard & Poor's and Moody's respectively

Exposure to JPMorgan Chase

JPMorgan Chase is the custodian of the Company’s assets The custody agreement grants a general lien over the securities
credited to the securities account The Company's assets are segregated from JPMorgan Chase’s own trading assets Therefore
these assets are designed to be protected from creditors in the event that JPMorgan Chase were to cease trading However, no
absolute guarantee can be given to investors on the protection of all the assets of the Company

Credit risk exposure
The amounts shown in the balance sheet under debtors and cash and short term deposits represent the maximum exposure
to credit risk at the current and comparative year end

Cash and short term deposits comprtse balances held at banks that have a mimimum credit rating of A1/P1 (2011 Al/P1) from
Standard & Poor's and Moody's respectively

Fair values of financial assets and financial {iabilities
Allfinancial assets and habihties are either included in the balance sheet at farr value or the carrying amount i the batance
sheet 1s a reasonable approximation of fair value

Capital management

The Company’s capital comprises the following

2012 201t
£000 £'000

Equity
Share capital 538 551
Reserves 298,297 310,556
Total capital 298,835 311107

The Company’s capital management objectives are to ensure that it will continue as a going concern and to maximise capital
return to its equity shareholders

There 1s currently no loan facihty in place

The Board, with the assistance of the Manager. monttors and reviews the broad structure of the Company's capital on an
ongoing basis This review includes

- the planned level of geaning. which takes into account the Manager’s views on the market,

- the need to buy back eguity shares for cancellation, which takes into account the share price discount or prermum, and
- the need for issues of new shares
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Netice 1s hereby given that the tenth Annual General Meeting
of JPMorgan Russtan Securities plc will be held at Holborn Bars
138-142 Holbhorn, London ECIN 2NQ on Monday, 4th March
2013 at 12 00 noon for the following purposes

1 Torecewve the Directors’ Report, the Annual Accounts and
the Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31st October 2012

2 Toapprove the Directors’ Remuneration Repori for the
year ended 31st October 2012

Tore-elect Lysander Tennant a Director of the Company
Tore-elect Alexander Easton a Director of the Company
Tore-elect Robert Jeens a Director of the Company

To re-elect George Nianias a Director of the Company

Tore-elect Gillian Nott a Director of the Company

m ~N o U b W

To reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as Auditors to the
Company and to authorise the Directors to determine their
remuneration

Special Business
To consider the following resolutions

Authority to allot new shares - Ordinary Resolution

9  THAT the Directors of the Company be and they are hereby
generally and unconditionally authorised, (in substitution of
any authonties previously granted to the Directors),
pursuant to Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the
‘Act'} to exercise all the powers for the Company to allot
relevant securities (within the meaning of Section 551 of the
Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £26,646,
representing approximately 5% of the Company’s 1ssued
ordinary share capital as at the date of the passing of this
resolution, provided that this authority shall expire at the
conciusion of the Annual General Meeung of the Company
to be held in 2014 unless renewed at a general meeting
prior to such time, save that the Company may before such
expiry make offers, agreements or arrangements which
would or might require relevant securivies to be allotted
after such expiry and so that the Directors of the Company
may allot relevant secunities in pursuance of such offers,
agreements or arrangements as If the authority conferred
hereby had not expired

Authonty to disapply pre-emption rights on allotment of relevant

securities - Special Resolution

10 THAT subject to the passing of Resolution @ set out above,
the Directors of the Company be and they are hereby
empowered pursuant to Section 570 and 573 of the Act to

allot equity securittes (within the meaning of Section 560 of
the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by
Resolution 9 or by way of a sale of Treasury shares as if
Section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment, provided that this power shall be hmited to the
allotment of equity securities for cash up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £26,646, representing approximately
5% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital as at the date of the
passing of this resolution at a price of not less than the net
asset value per share and shall expire upon the expiry of
the general authority conferred by Resolution 9 ahove,
save that the Company may before such expiry make offers,
or agreements which would or might require equity
securities to be allotted after such expiry and so that the
Directors of the Company may alot equity securities in
pursuant of such offers, or agreements as if the power
conferred hereby had not exprred

Authority to repurchase the Company’s shares - Special Resolution
1t THAT the Company be generally and, subject as hereinafter

appears, unconditionally authorised in accordance with
Section 701 of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’) to make
market purchases (within the meaning of Sectron 693 of the
Act) of its 1Issued ordinary shares of 1 pence each in the
capital of the Company

PROVIDED ALWAYS THAT

() the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby
authonsed to be purchased shall be 7988,487 or If less,
that number of ordinary shares which is equal to
14 99% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
date of the passing of this Resolution,

(n) the mimimum price which may be paid for an ordinary
share will be 1 pence,

() the maximum price which may be paid for an ordinary
share shall be an amount equal to the highest of
{a) 105% of the average of the middie market
quotations for an ordinary share taken from and
calculated by reference to the London Stock Exchange
Daily Official List for the five business days immediately
preceding the day on which the ordinary share 1s
purchased, or (b) the price of the last independent
trade, or (c) the highest current independent bid,

(v} any purchase of ordinary shares will be made in the
market for cash at prices below the prevailing net asset
value per ordinary share (as determined by the
Directors) at the date following not more than seven
days before the date of purchase,
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

{v) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the
Company’s Annual General Meeting to be held in 2014
unless the authonty 1s renewed at a general meeting
prior to such time, and

(v1) the Company may make a contract to purchase
ordinary shares under the authority hereby conferred
prior to the expiry of such authority and may make a
purchase of shares pursuant to any such contract
notwithstanding such expiry

Mo Ve r _

By order of the Board

Alison Vincent ACYS, for and on behalf of
PMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited,
Secretary

30th January 2013

Notes

These notes should be read in conjunction with the notes on the
reverse of the proxy form

1

50

A member entitied to attend and vote at the Maeting may appoint
anather person(s) (who need not be a member of the Company) to
exercise all ar any of his rights to attend speak and vote at the
Meeting A member can appoint more than one proxy 1n refation to
the Meeting, provided that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the
rights attaching to different shares held by him

A proxy does not need to be a member of the Company but must
attend the Meeting to represent you Your praxy could be the
Chairman, another director of the Company or another person who
has agreed to attend to represent you Detalls of how to appoint
the Chairman or another personi{s) as your proxy or proxies Using
the proxy form are set out in the notes to the proxy form If a voting
box on the proxy form s left blank, the proxy or proxies wll
exercise his/thetr discretion both as to how to vote and whether
he/they abstain(s) from voting Your proxy must attend the
Meeting for your vote to count Appainting a proxy or proxies does
not preclude you from attending the Meeting and voting m person
If you attend the Meeting in person, your proxy agpointment will
automatically be terminated

Any instrument appointing a proxy, to be vald, must be lodged in
accordance with the instructions given on the proxy form

You may change your proxy instructions by returning a new proxy
appointment The deadline for receipt of proxy appomntments also
applies in relation to amended instructions Any attempt to
terminate or amend a proxy appointment receved after the
relevant deadline will be disregarded Where two or more vald
separate appointments of proxy are received in respect of the
same share in respect of the same Meeting the one which s last
received {regardless of its date or the date of its signature} shall be
treated as replacing and revoking the other or others as regards

that share, if the Company 15 unable to determine which was last
receved (regardless of its date or the date of its signature} shall be
treated as replacing and revoking the other or others as regards
that share If the Company Is unable to determine which was last
received none of them shall be treated as vahd in respect of that
share

To be entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting {and for the
purpose of the determination by the Company of the number of
votes they may cast) members must be entered on the Companys
register of members as at 6 00 p m twa business days prior to the
Meeting (the speafied ime) If the Meeting 1s adjourned to a hme
not more than 48 hours after the specified tme applicable to the
onginal Meeting that tme wall also apply for the purpose of
determining the entitlerment of members to attend and vote (and
for the purpose of determining the number of votes they may cast)
at the adjourned Meeting If however the Meeting 15 adjourned for
alonger period then to be so entitled, members must be entered
on the Company s register of members as at 600 pm two
business days prior to the adjosurned Meeting or. if the Company
gives notice of the adjourned Meeting, at the time specified in that
notice Changes to entries on the register after this tme shall be
disregarded in determining the nghts of persons ta attend or vote
at the meeting or adjourned meeting

Entry to the Meeting will be restricted to shareholders and their
proxy or proxies with guests admitted only by prior arrangement

A corporation, which is a shareholder, may appotnt an indvidual(s)
to act as Its representative(s) and to vote in person at the Meeting
(see instructions given on the proxy form) In accerdance with the
pravisions of the Companies Act 2006, each such representative(s}
may exercise {on behalf of the corporation) the same powers as the
corporatron could exercise if it were an individual member of the
Company, provided that they do not do so inrelation to the same
shares Itis therefore no longer necessary to nominate a
designated corporate representative Representatives should bring
1o the meeting evidence of their appointment, including any
authonty under which it 1s signed

Members that satisfy the thresholds in Section 527 of the
Companies Act 2006 can require the Company to publish a
statement on its website setting out any matter relating to (a) the
audit of the Company’s accounts (including the Auditor’s report
and the conduct of the audit) that are to be Jaid before the AGM or
{b) any crcumstances connected with an Auditor of the Company
ceasing to hald office since the previous AGM which the members
propose to raise at the meeting The Company cannot require the
members requesting the publication to pay its expenses Any
statement placed on the website must also be sent to the
Company's Auditors no later than the time . makes 1ts statement
available on the website The business which may be dealt with at
the AGM includes any statement that the Company has been
required to publish onits website pursuant to this right

Pursuant to Section 3194 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company
must cause to be answered at the AGM any question relating to the
business being dealt with at the AGM whach 1s put by a member
attending the meeting exceptn certain circumstances, Including if
1t 1s undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good order
of the meeting or if it would invalve the disclosure of confidential
information
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uUnder Sections 338 and 3384 of the 2006 Act, members meeting
the threshold requirements in those sections have the nght to
require the Company (1) to give, to members of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the Meeting notice of a resalution
which those members intend to move {(and which may properly be
moved) at the Meeting and/or (n) to include i the business to be
dealt with at the Meeting any matter {other than a proposed
resolution) which may properly be included tn the business at the
Mesting A resolution may properly be moved or a matter properly
included in the business unless (a) (in the case of a reselution only)
itwoutd If passed be ineffective (whether by reason of any
inconsistency with any enactment or the Company s constitution or
otherwise) (b) 1t 1s defamatory of any person or ()it 1s frivotous or
vexatious A request made pursuant to this night may be n hard
copy or electronic form mustidentify the resolution of which
netice 15 to be given or the matter to be included in the business,
must be accompanied by a statement setttng out the grounds for
the request must be authenticated by the person(s) making it and
must be received by the Company not later than the date that s six
clear weeks before the Meeting and (in the case of a matter to be
included in the business only) must be accompanied by a
statement setting out the grounds for the request

A capy of this notice has been sent for information only to persons
who have been nominated by a member to enjoy information
rights under Section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 (a ‘Nominated
Person ) The nghts to appoint a proxy can not be exercised by a
Nominated Person they can only be exercised by the member
However, a Nominated Persen may have a nght under an
agreement between him and the member by whom he was
neminated to be appointed as a proxy for the Meeting or to have
someone else so appointed if a Nominated Person does not have
such a right or does not wish to exercise it, he may have a night
under such an agreement to give instructions to the member as to
the exercise of voting rights

In accordance with Section 311A of the Companies Act 2006 the
contents of this notice of meeting, details of the total number of
shares 1n respect of which members are entitled to exercise voung
rights at the AGM, the total voting nghts members are entitled to
exercise at the AGM and, if applicable, any members statements
members resolutions or members matters of business receved
by the Company after the date of this notice will be available on the
Company’s website www pmrussian co uk

The register of interests of the Directors and connected persons in
the share capital of the Company and the Directors’ letters of
appotntment are avaidable for inspection at the Company s
registered office during usual business hours on any weekday
{Saturdays Sundays and public holidays excepted) it will also be
avallable for inspection at the Annual General Meeting No Director
has any contract of service with the Company

You may not use any electronic address provided in this Notice of
meeting to communicate with the Company for any purposes other
than those expressly stated

As an alternative to completing a hardcopy Form of Proxy/Voting
Direction Form you ¢an appoint a proxy or proxigs electronically
by wisiting www sharevote co uk You will need your Voting 1D
Task ID and Shareholder Reference Number (this is the senes of

numbers printed under your name on the Form of Proxy/Voting
Direction Form) Alternatively If you have already registered with
Equinitt Limited s online portfolio service Shareview you can
submit your Form of Proxy at www shareview cg uk Full
instruchons are given on both websites

16 Asat 29th January 2013 {beingthe latest business day prior to the
publication of this Notice), the Campany s sssued share capital
cansists of 53,292,112 ordinary shares carrying one vote each
Therefore the total voung rights in the Company are 53 292 112

Electronic appointment - CREST members

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies by utilising the
CREST electronmc proxy appontrment service may do so for the Meeung
and any adjournment(s} thereof by using the procedures described in
the CREST Manual See further instructions on the proxy form
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Glossary of Terms and Definitions

Return to Shareholders
Total return to the shareholder, on a mid-market price to
mid-market price basis

Return on Net Assets
Return on the net asset value per share, on a bid value to bid
value basis

Benchmark Return

Total return on the benchmark, on a mid-market value to
rmid-market value basss, assuming that all dividends recewed
were reinvested into the shares of the underlying companies at
the time the shares were quoted ex-dividend The benchmark
1s a recogmsed index of stocks which should not be taken as
wholly representative of the Company’s investment universe
The Company’s investment strategy does not ‘track’ this index
and conseguently, there may be some divergence between the
Company's performance and that of the benchmark

Share Price Discount/Premium to Net Asset Value (‘NAV’) per Share
tf the share price of an investment trust 1s lower than the NAV
per share, the shares are said to be trading at a discount The
discount 1s shown as a percentage of the NAV per share The
opposite of a discount Is 2 premium It 1s more commen for an
Investment trust's shares to trade at a discount than at a
premium

Gearing/{Net Cash)

The excess amount above sharehalders’ funds of total asset
less cash and cash equivalents, expressed as percentage of
shareholders’ funds If the amount so calculated 1s negative,
this 15 shown as a ‘net cash’ position

Ongoing Charges

The Ongoing Charges represent the Company’s management
fee and all other operating expenses excluding finance costs
payable, expressed as a percentage of the average of the daily
net assets during the year and 1s calculated in accordance with
guidance 1ssued by the Association of Investment Companies

The method of calculating the Ongoing Charges (2011 Total
Expense Ratio or ‘TER'Y has changed The TER represented the
Company’s management fee and all other operating expenses
excluding interest, expressed as a percentage of the average of
the month end net assets during the year
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Active Position

The active position shows the difference between the
Company's holding of an indmdual stock or sector compared
with that stock or sector s weighting in the Company’s
benchmark index A positive number indicates an active
decision by the Manager to own more of (1 & be overweight) a
particular stock or sector versus the benchmark and a negative
number tndicates a decsision to hold less of (e be
underweight) a particular stock or sector versus the
benchmark

Performance Attribution
Analysis of how the Company achieved 1ts recorded
performance relative toits benchmark

Performance Attribution Definitions

Stock Selection

Measures the effect of investing in secunities to a greater or
lesser extent than their weighting in the benchmark, or of
investing In securities which are not included in the
benchmark

Gearing/Net Cash
Measures the impact on returns of borrowings or cash
balances on the Company’s relative performance

Management Fee/Other Expenses

The payment of fees and expenses reduces the level of total
assets, and therefare has a negative effect on relative
performance

Share Buybacks

Measures the enhancement to net asset value per share of
buying back the Company's shares for cancellation at a price
which 1s less than the Company’s net asset value per share
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Information about the Company

Financial Calendar

Financial year end

Final results announced

Half year end

Half year results announced

Intertm Management Staterment announced
Dividend (f any)

Annual General Meeting

History

The Company was launched 1n December 2002 by a placing and offer
for subscription Itis the successor company to The Fleming Russia
Securittes Fund Limited which was a closed-ended investment
company incorporated in Jersey and listed an the Insh Stock Exchange
The Campany adopted 1ts present name on 1st March 2006

Life of the Company

Directors will propose a resolution that the Company continue as an
investment trust at the Annual General Meeting in 2017 and every five
years thereafter

Company Numbers

Campany registration number 4567378
London Stock Exchange number 3216473
ISIN GB0O032164732

Bloomberg code JRS LN

Market Information

The Company lists its shares on the London Stock Exchange The
market price 1s shown daily in The Scotsman the Financial Times The
Times The Daily Telegraph, The Independent and on the JPMorgan
website at www Jpmrussian co uk, where the share price 1s updated
every fifteen minutes dunng trading hours

Website
WWW JPMIrussian co uk

Share Transactions

The Company s shares may be dealt in directly through a stockbroker
or professional adviser acting on an investor s behalf They may also
be purchased and held through the J P Morgan Investment Account,
JP Morgan ISA and J P Margan SIPP These products are all available
on the onhne wealth manager service, ] P Morgan WealthManager+
available at www |pmorganwealthmanagerplus co uk

Manager and Company Secretary
JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited

Company's Registered Office
Finsbury Duals

20 Finsbury Street

London EC2Y 9AQ
Telephone Q20 7742 4000

Please contact Alison Vincent ACIS for company secretarial and
administrative matters at the Company's registered office

31st October
January
30th April
June
March/September
Apri
March
Custodian
JPMorgan Chase Bank N A
25 Bank Street
Canary Wharf
London E14 5P
Registrars
Equiniti Limited
Reference 2610
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

West Sussex BN99 6DA
Telephone 0871 384 2030

Calls to this number cost 8p per minute from a BT landline Other
providers costs may vary Lines open 8 30am to5 30 pm, Monday
to Fniday The overseas helpline number 1s +44 (0)121 415 7047

Notifications of changes of address and enquines regarding share
certificates or dividend cheques should be made in writing to the
Registrar quoting reference 2610

Registered shareholders can obtan further details on their holdings on
the internet by visiting www shareview co uk

Independent Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditer
1 More London Place

London SE1 2AF

Brokers

Cenkeos Securities plc
678 Tokenhouse Yard
London EC2R 7AS

Savings Product Administrators
For queries on the J P Morgan Investment Account, | P Morgan 15A and
1P Morgan SIPP see contact details on the back cover of this report

A member of the AIC
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1P Morgan Helpline
Freephone 0800 20 40 20 or +44 (0)20 7742 9995

Your telephone call may be recorded for your security

WWW |pmrussian co uk




